
 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 
 
Corporate Services 
Director:  Nigel Stewart 
 

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604444 

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 
e.mail –nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
25 May 2005 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, 
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 3 JUNE 2005 at 2:30 PM, which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Nigel Stewart 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
 

BUSINESS 
 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)  

 
 3. MINUTES 
  Audit Committee 4 March 2005 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 4. STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND - FURTHER INFORMATION 
  Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 5. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 9 - 20) 

 
 6. EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004-2005 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 21 - 42) 

 
 7. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2004-2005 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 43 - 58) 

 
 8. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT 2004-2005 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 59 - 62) 

 
 9. ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003-2004 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 63 - 68) 

 

Public Document Pack



 10. AUDIT SCOTLAND REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT (FOLLOW UP) 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 69 - 70) 

 
 11. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2004-2005 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 71 - 76) 

 
 12. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2005-2006 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 77 - 96) 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor John McAlpine
 Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor Elaine Robertson
 Ian M Ross Councillor John Tacchi
 Christopher Valentine 
 
 
 Contact: Fiona McCallum                  Tel. No. 01546 604401 
 



 
MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the MEMBERS' ROOM, KILMORY, 

LOCHGILPHEAD  
on FRIDAY, 4 MARCH 2005  

 
Present: Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) 

 
 Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor Elaine Robertson 
 Councillor John Tacchi Ian Ross 
   
Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic Services and Governance 
 Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance 
 Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager 
 Steve Keightley, KPMG 
 Angela Cassels, Audit Scotland 
 Ian Bell, Audit Scotland 
 David Jamieson, Audit Scotland 
  
Apologies: Councillor John McAlpine 
 Christopher Valentine 
 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and a special welcome was extended to Angela 

Cassels who had replaced David MacConnell as Auditor for the Council. 
 

 1. MINUTES 
 

  The minutes of the Audit Committee of 3 December 2004 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 

 2. ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003-2004 
 

  The Audit Committee at their meeting on 3 December 2004 requested that the Heads of 
Integrated Care and Secondary Education provide the Committee with a date for 
production of the policy position paper. 
 
DECISION 
 

1. To note that the Heads of Integrated Care and Secondary Education would have a 
policy position paper prepared by 31 March 2005 and in addition an Action Plan 
would be completed with implementation dates signed by both Heads of Service 
for any remaining recommendations. 

 
2. To note that progress will continue to be monitored and reported on by Internal 

Audit. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 3. AUDIT SCOTLAND REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT (FOLLOW UP) 
 

  In July 2004, Audit Scotland had issued national and local reports on their review 
findings, which concentrated on assessing Internal Audit Compliance of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Internal Audit 
in Local Government.  Details of the progress made regarding the implementation of 
local report recommendations are also outlined. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 
DECISION 
 

1. To note that the Council’s Constitution in its new format would be considered by 
the Council at a meeting on 8 April 2005. 

 
2. To note that the work of Internal Audit in this respect was now complete. 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 4. EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004-2005 
 

  A report setting out the results from a review performed by Internal Audit for 
recommendations due to be implemented by 31 December 2004 was considered. 
 
Concerns were expressed about the time taken to complete the Ferry Services Review, it 
being noted that the original timescale for completion in September 2004 had now 
slipped to May 2005. 
 
DECISION 
 

1. To note the memo issued to the Strategic Directors emphasising the importance 
of agreeing realistic implementation dates with auditors which will also provide 
the Audit Committee with a measured basis against which to monitor 
implementation progress. 

 
2. To instruct the Head of Roads and Amenity Services to give a verbal report to the 

next meeting of the Audit Committee explaining the reasons for slippage on the 
Ferry Services Review. 

 
3. To request that the Chief Executive advise the Audit Committee of the reasons 

for the delay in the Ferry Services Review and to confirm whether completion of 
the Review could be brought forward as it had implications for the Capital 
Budget, meeting on 17 March 2005. 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 5. HMIE REPORT 2002-2003 
 

  Internal Audit had performed a review regarding the progress made by Community 
Services Departmental Management in the implementation of both the key and main 
report recommendations contained in the report  “Moving to Mainstream – The Inclusion 
of Pupils with Special Education Needs in Mainstream Schools”. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report and that Internal Audit will continue to monitor 
progress by the Community Service Departmental Management regarding the issues 
raised in both the HMIE summary and main reports. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 
 

Page 2



 6. KPMG - FINANCE TRAINING FOR ELECTED MEMBERS 
 

  The Audit Committee, at the meeting on 3 December 2004, requested that arrangements 
be made by the Head of Strategic Finance for a 2 hour training session to be delivered by 
KPMG for elected members covering Finance for Non Finance Managers.  Details of the 
issues that KPMG would cover were also outlined. 
 
DECISION 
 

1. Agreed the topics to be covered in the training session, which would take place 
on 22 March 2005. 

 
2. To request that the principles of how to read Council Financial reports be covered 

under topics 3 and 4 detailed in the report. 
 

3. To extend an invitation to the training day to the lay members of the Audit and 
Standards Committees. 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 3 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 7. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS 
 

  Audit Scotland issued a National Report towards the end of November 2004 entitled 
“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”, which contained the findings of the recent study of the 
steps taken by the Scottish Executive and Council to monitor the condition of Scotland’s 
road network and to manage structural maintenance.  The study was undertaken as a 
single exercise covering both trunk roads and Council maintained roads.  A copy of the 
Key Findings report was considered. 
 
Decision 
 

1. To note the contents of the report and request this be followed up by internal 
audit. 

 
2. To congratulate the Head of Roads and Amenity Services on his quick response 

to the report’s findings. 
 

3. To ask the Strategic Policy Committee if they are satisfied that the Council has 
the necessary resources to address the issues highlighted in the report and if not 
whether they have sought, or intend to seek additional funds, from the Scottish 
Executive to assist to deliver the actions outlined in the report.   

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 8. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2004-2005 
 

  Consideration was given to an interim report detailing the audit work performed by 
Internal Audit up to 31 December 2004 and the progress of the Annual Audit Plan.   
 
Decision 
 
To approve the progress made with the Annual Audit Plan for 2004-2005. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 

Page 3



 
 9. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2003-2004 

 
  A report containing an executive summary and action plan for a new report issued by 

Audit Scotland since the last Audit committee was considered together with details of the 
progress made by management in implementing the report’s recommendations. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by Internal Audit. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 10. STRATEGIC AUDIT PLAN 2005-2008 
 

  Consideration was given to the Strategic Audit Plan for 2005-2008, prepared in 
consultation with KPMG, and the Annual Audit Plan for 2005-2006. 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the Strategic Audit Plan 2005-2008 and the Annual Audit Plan for 2005-
2006. 
 
(Reference:  Report by Internal Audit Manger dated 7 February 2005, submitted). 
 

 11. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS PROGRESS AND TIMETABLE 
 

  A report advising the Audit Committee on the plans in place for financial year end 31 
March 2005 and the preparation of the Council’s annual accounts for 2004-2005 was 
considered. 
 
Decision 
 

1. To note that plans are in place to prepare the Council’s annual accounts 
consistent with the Accounting Code of Practice. 

 
2. That the Head of Strategic Finance submit the annual accounts to Council prior to 

30 June 2005 in line with the Scottish Executive’s requirements. 
 
(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 10 February 2005, tabled). 
 

 12. OVERVIEW OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS 
 

  The Audit Committee, at their meeting on 3 December 2004 expressed concerns 
regarding the pension fund disclosures within the 2004-2005 annual accounts.  Strategic 
Finance prepared a report to address these concerns and also the general background to 
the administration and management arrangements governing the Strathclyde Pension 
Fund. 
 
Decision  
 

1. To note the contents of the very detailed report and commend Chris Dalgarno-
Platt for its production. 

 

Page 4



 
 
2. To request that a staff member in Strategic Finance be responsible for monitoring 

the outputs from the Fund, ensuring that senior staff and Council Members are 
kept informed of such issues. 

 
3. To ask the Head of Strategic Finance to seek clarification from the Head of 

Pensions at Glasgow City Council on how the review of the Fund’s Sub 
Committee will be carried out and what the existing structure of the Sub 
Committee is. 

 
(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance, submitted). 
 

 13. AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM 2004-2005 
 

  Angela Cassels, Audit Scotland, outlined the Audit Planning Memorandum for the 2004-
2005 Audit, which set out the Audit Responsibilities and Approach and key risks and 
planned activity in respect of the Financial Statements Audit, Governance Audit, and 
Performance audit.  Audit Fee and Output were also outlined. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of the report and that Angela will bring back a report to the 

September meeting of the Audit committee prior to issue of the Audit Certificate. 
 
2. To note that in view of the Audit of Best Value being undertaken by Audit Scotland 

that any further consideration of value for money issues be continued to await the 
receipt of the Audit report. 

 
(Reference: Audit Planning Memorandum 2004-2005 dated 24 February 2005, 
submitted). 
 

  
The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973, to exclude the public for the following item of business on the grounds that it was likely 
to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 8 and 9 respectively of 
Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 
 
Steve Keightley, Angela Cassels, Ian Bell and David Jamieson left the meeting prior to 
discussion of the following item of business. 
 

 14. INTERNAL AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 

  The Committee considered a report advising of the outcome of the tendering exercise for 
the Internal Audit Partnership. 
 
Decision 
 
Agreed the recommendation detailed in the report. 
 
(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 4 March 2004, tabled). 
 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 3 JUNE 2005
 
STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND – FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 At the last Audit Committee it was remitted to the Head of Strategic 

Finance to nominate an officer to maintain a watching brief over 
Strathclyde Pension Fund and to find out from Glasgow City Council the 
process for the review they were proposing of the Pension Fund Sub 
Committee. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 To note this report. 
 

3 DETAIL 
 

3.1 At the last Audit Committee it was remitted to the Head of Strategic 
Finance to nominate an officer to maintain a watching brief over 
Strathclyde Pension Fund. An officer has now been nominated. 
 

3.2 The process for the review of the Pension Fund Sub Committee by 
Glasgow City Council is as follows: 
¾ The Sub Committee has already agreed to undertake the review. 
¾ At its next meeting on 9 June the Sub Committee will consider a 

report on representation strategy. 
¾ This report will also be submitted to the Strathclyde Pension 

Fund annual meeting on 24 June to which all stakeholders are 
invited. 

¾ After the meeting on 9 June the representation strategy will be 
issued for consultation. 

¾ Responses to the consultation will need to be returned to 
Strathclyde Pension Fund by mid August. 

¾ The Sub Committee will consider responses and approve the 
representation strategy at its September meeting. 

¾ The new representation arrangements will become effective from 
November. 

 
 
 
Bruce West 
Head of Strategic Finance 
24 May 2005 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
MAINTAINING SCOTLAND’S ROADS 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of November 2004 entitled, 

“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”. The report contained the findings of a recent study of 
the steps taken by the Scottish Executive and councils to monitor the condition of 
Scotland’s road network and to manage structural maintenance.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
  
    3.1 The Audit Scotland report detailed 9 recommendations that it wished the Scottish 

Executive and councils to address. No implementation dates were assigned for the 
recommendations contained in the report. In December 2004, in response to the 
Audit Scotland report, the Head of Roads & Amenity Services prepared a report 
for the Strategic Policy Committee (SPC). 

    
  3.2 The Head of Service report included an Action Plan which highlighted the current 

position, proposed action and timescale for implementation of the national report 
recommendations. In addition 3 further action points were added by the Head of 
Service to reflect dependent issues. A copy of the Head of Services report along 
with a copy of the Audit Scotland, Key Findings report was provided for the Audit 
Committee on the 4th of March 2005. 

    
  3.3 The Audit Committee on the 4th of March 2005 requested that the SPC be asked 

whether they were satisfied that the Council had the necessary resources to address 
the issues highlighted in the national report. If not whether they had sought, or 
intended to seek additional funds, from the Scottish Executive to assist with the 
implementation of the recommendations outlined in the national report. Attached 
in Appendix 1 is an extract from the meeting of the SPC of the 13th April 2005 at 
which, the questions posed by the Audit Committee were raised. 

    
  3.4 Attached in Appendix 2, is an update report dated 5th of May 2005, submitted by 

the Head of Roads & Amenity Services to the SPC. Internal Audit has added an 
additional column to the Action Plan to highlight the current position regarding the 
progress with implementation of the 12 recommendations. As at the 22nd of April 
2005, Internal Audit can report that there are only 4 recommendations remaining 
to be implemented. Of the 4 recommendations, one is on target for implementation 
by the end of May 2005, 2 have an implementation date of December 2005 with 
the remaining one being March 2006. The 3 are reported by management as 
ongoing. 

    

Agenda Item 5Page 9



 
 

   

4. CONCLUSIONS 
   

Progress with the implementation of the reports recommendations will continue to 
be monitored by Internal Audit.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   22 April 2005.  
22Aprfinalreport22Apr 

Page 10



                                             APPENDIX 1 

                                                   EXTRACT 
MINUTES of MEETING of STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE held in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD  
on WEDNESDAY, 13 APRIL 2005  

 
 
6. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS 
 
The Committee considered a request from the Audit Committee inquiring whether the 
Strategic Policy Committee were satisfied that the Council has the necessary 
resources to address the issues highlighted in the report and if not whether they have 
sought, or intend to seek additional funds, from the Scottish Executive to assist in 
delivering the actions outlined in the report “Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”. 
 
Decision 
 
That a report be brought to a future meeting detailing the position regarding Grant 
Aided Expenditure (GAE) and also containing information from COSLA as to what 
other Local Authorities are doing to meet these costs. 
 
(Ref: Extract of Minute of the Audit Committee of 4 March 2005, submitted). 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 1

 
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE

OPERATIONAL SERVICES                 5th May 2005
 
 
MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS   -     UPDATE OF ACTION PLAN 
 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
 This report provides an update of the Action Plan contained within the   "Maintaining 

Scotland's Roads" report to the Strategic Policy Committee on 9th December 2004. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Committee is asked to: - 
 
  

2.1   Note that an Action Plan based on the Recommendations of the Report  
“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads” is being implemented.  

 
2.2  Note the content of the updated plan as set out in Appendix 1 
. 
2.3  Note the Road Maintenance backlog figures as calculated by SCOTS set out in 

Appendix 2. 
 
2.4  Note the update to Local performance indicators as set out in Appendix 3 

 
 

 
3. DETAIL 
 

3.1 The Action Plan formulated for the Strategic Policy Committee paper 
“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads” has been updated. The updated plan is shown 
in Appendix 1. The main points of update are detailed below. 

 
3.2 The Society of Chief Officers for Transportation in Scotland (SCOTS )have 

published Road Maintenance backlog calculations for the Scottish road 
network. These figures were calculated using information gained during 
Scottish Road Maintenance Condition Survey (SRMCS). The tables shown in 
appendix 2 give details for all 32 Councils across Scotland. The total backlog 
for Argyll and Bute’s Roads Network is calculated at £38,116,715. To achieve 
a steady state within 10yrs a capital spend of £9,333,160 per year for the next 
10 years would be required. This figure allows for continued deterioration as 
well as clearing existing backlog. The figures compares to the capital resource 
of £1,931,000 allocated by the Council in 2005-2006 and £2,543,000 for 2006-
2007. 

 
3.3 The figures identified by SCOTS assume a set standard of desirable road 

condition across Scotland, which allows the figures to be used as a benchmark 

Page 13



APPENDIX 2 

 2

with other authorities.  If the calculation was to be undertaken using the 
specific road conditions standards set out in the “Road Maintenance and Asset 
Management Plan” prepared in February 2004 then the backlog figure may be 
reduced.  It is however difficult to determine the actual figure as problems such 
as edge deterioration, a major problem within Argyll & Bute, is not included 
within the SCOTS calculation. This year’s road condition survey, being carried 
out at present, does to an extent look at edge deterioration and an updated 
calculation in future years will take this into account. 

 
3.4 As result of being awarded additional capital monies of £5.25 million, for roads 

reconstruction, over the next 4 years a programme of resurfacing works has 
been formulated to priorities how this money will be best spent over the 4-year 
period. This programme of works has been presented to Area Committees. 

 
 

 3.5 As part of a desire to work more closely with other local authorities Argyll and 
Bute has jointly entered into supply tenders, for Bitumen products, and Coated 
and Uncoated Roadstone with neighbouring councils. As a result some saving 
have been made for the supply of these roads materials. 

  
   

   
 

4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
 4.1 Policy – The Roads Maintenance and Asset Management Plan continues to be 

used as basis for maintaining the road network. 
 
 4.2 Financial – In order to improve the condition of Argyll and Bute's roads, 

substantial investment beyond existing levels will be required. 
 
 4.3 Personnel – None. 
 
 4.4 Equal Opportunities – None. 
 
 4.5 Legal – None. 
 
 
For further information, please contact Graham Brown (Tel: 01546 604687). 
 
Andrew R Law 
Director of Operational Services 
12 April 2005 

Page 14



APPENDIX 2 

 3

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
No. 

 

 
Recommendations 

 
Current Position 

 
Proposed Action 

 
Timescale 

 
Update as 

at 22nd 
April 2005 

 1 Report on the condition of roads and 
maintenance backlog. 
 

Reported to SPC 9th 
Dec 2004 

Continue to report 
on annual basis. 

December 
2005 

Ongoing 

 2 Determine the size of the structural 
maintenance backlog. 
 

SCOTS figures shown 
in Appendix 2 

Determine the cost, 
in accordance with 
Scottish Executive 
approved 
techniques. 
 

March 2005 
 

Complete 

 3 Establish a long-term strategy for 
road maintenance in the overall 
context of transportation and roads 
asset management strategies. 
 

May 2004 - Roads 
Asset Management 
Plan produced;  
requires annual 
update 

Implement further 
action in association 
with Asset 
Management Unit. 

December 
2005 

Ongoing 

 4 Meet the recommendations stated in 
"Delivering Best Value in Highway 
Maintenance – Code of Practice for 
Maintenance Management". 
 

Road Asset 
Maintenance Plan 
introduced by Council 
in May 2004. 

Continue to monitor. - - 

 5 Review budget setting procedures 
ensuring appropriate priority to 
structural maintenance to achieve 
long-term value for money. 
 

4 year capital 
resurfacing 
programme compiled 

Review Audit 
Scotland's 
recommendation. 

March 2005 
 

Complete  

 6
  

Conduct an option appraisal for 
procuring and financing road 
maintenance services. 
 

No action. Undertake 
recommendation. 

March 2006 Ongoing 

 7 Improve inventory information on the 
roads assets. 
 

Completed Feb 2005 Maintain inventory 
each financial year. 

March 2005 
 

Complete  
 

 8
  

Use asset management system 
linked to GIS and financial system. 
 

On Going – Lighting 
information in place 
and Roads to be input 
18/04/2005 
 

Refine the Roads 
Maintenance 
Management 
System. 

May 2005 
 

Complete 

 9 Consider joint working with other 
Councils 
 

Collaborative buying 
contracts with 
neighbouring 
Councils, for Bitumen 
Products and Coated 
and Uncoated 
Roadstone, have 
been undertaken. 
 

Maintain each 
financial year. 

March 
2005. 
 

Complete 
but an 
ongoing 
practice 

 10
  

Review unit costs of various service 
elements. 
 

Re costed Feb 2005 – 
complete for March 
2005 

Maintain each 
financial year 

March 2005 
 

Complete 

 11 Develop a framework of 
performance indicators and 
outcome targets against which to 
measure the performance of the 
road maintenance system. 
 

The performance 
indicators within the 
plan have been 
reviewed. See 
Appendix 3 

Review Performance 
Indicators in light of 
Audit Scotland's 
Report. 

April 2005 
 

Complete  
 

 12 Complete the Best Value Road 
Maintenance Service Checklist. 
 

On Going – on target Complete 
recommendation. 

May 2005 
 

On target 
to 
complete 
by the end 
of May 
2005. 

 
 

Page 15



APPENDIX 2 

 4

 
 

Page 16



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

  
5

      
  

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

 

SR
M

C
S 

 - 
( 2

00
3/

20
04

 ) 
B

ac
kl

og
 S

um
m

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
( R

ev
is

ed
 6

 D
ec

 2
00

4 
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
To

ta
l 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 

St
ea

dy
 S

ta
te

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

ac
kl

og
 

Yr
 1

- 1
0 

> 
 y

r 1
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
31

,3
56

,7
53

 
11

,1
58

,3
28

9,
69

0,
87

9
 

N
ot

es
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

ng
us

 
10

,7
46

,5
55

 
3,

82
3,

78
3

3,
34

8,
16

6
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
38

,1
16

,7
15

 
9,

33
3,

16
0

7,
67

0,
77

9
 

As
su

m
ed

 B
ac

kl
og

 e
lim

in
at

ed
 o

ve
r 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

  
  

B
or

de
rs

 
22

,4
39

,7
50

 
6,

59
8,

36
3

5,
70

0,
64

8
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
um

fr
ie

s 
43

,4
14

,5
59

 
10

,2
42

,4
97

7,
70

8,
68

8
 

B
ac

kl
og

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

co
st

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
  

  
  

H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

59
,8

48
,6

79
 

16
,4

30
,3

30
13

,2
53

,6
40

 
de

si
re

d 
le

ve
l o

f s
er

vi
ce

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 b

y 
 P

I 
  

  
M

or
ay

 
13

,7
42

,7
61

 
3,

61
8,

18
3

2,
93

7,
42

3
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pe
rt

h 
K

in
ro

ss
 

20
,6

85
,0

37
 

5,
82

2,
21

4
4,

94
7,

71
0

 
A 

C
la

ss
 

8%
  

  
  

  
E 

A
yr

sh
ire

 
22

,4
51

,0
86

 
5,

15
9,

96
2

4,
00

5,
97

3
 

B
 C

la
ss

 
8%

  
  

  
  

E 
Lo

th
ia

n 
14

,1
68

,9
07

 
3,

98
9,

68
8

3,
32

1,
36

6
 

C
 C

la
ss

 
12

%
  

  
  

  
Fi

fe
 

32
,1

72
,7

89
 

10
,3

08
,9

66
9,

02
2,

37
2

 
U

  C
la

ss
 

15
%

  
  

  
  

M
id

lo
th

ia
n 

10
,6

52
,3

49
 

2,
96

3,
52

4
2,

39
3,

73
2

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
N

 A
yr

sh
ire

 
20

,3
07

,2
62

 
5,

49
3,

00
2

4,
71

4,
85

0
 

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

cu
rr

en
t p

ar
am

et
er

s,
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

 c
os

ts
 

S 
A

yr
sh

ire
 

22
,4

77
,1

94
 

5,
17

4,
68

0
4,

09
2,

07
5

 
ie

. E
xc

lu
de

s 
cr

ac
ki

ng
 a

nd
 e

dg
e 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

  
  

S 
La

na
rk

sh
ire

 
49

,1
82

,3
95

 
10

,5
58

,8
19

7,
94

3,
33

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
irl

in
g 

34
,4

47
,4

78
 

6,
23

3,
18

4
3,

96
8,

12
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

 L
ot

hi
an

 
6,

55
7,

08
1 

3,
93

8,
88

6
3,

70
2,

17
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

rk
ne

y 
5,

61
2,

93
4 

2,
34

3,
79

9
2,

08
3,

36
9

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sh

et
la

nd
 

11
,8

08
,9

24
 

3,
15

7,
81

9
2,

54
3,

35
9

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

es
te

rn
 Is

le
s 

10
,6

10
,2

44
 

3,
44

9,
28

6
3,

00
7,

22
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
24

,7
10

,2
63

 
6,

76
7,

56
4

5,
63

1,
96

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
un

de
e 

17
,9

71
,9

80
 

4,
52

5,
22

1
3,

55
3,

68
3

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 17



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

  
6

Ed
in

bu
rg

h 
66

,8
73

,9
11

 
13

,6
50

,8
63

9,
97

1,
32

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
la

sg
ow

 
58

,0
53

,4
54

 
13

,7
45

,3
00

11
,2

72
,0

04
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

E 
D

un
ba

rt
on

sh
ire

 
3,

02
8,

73
8 

1,
73

0,
66

3
1,

39
5,

09
9

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

la
ck

m
an

na
ns

hi
re

 
3,

70
4,

20
1 

93
7,

97
6

79
0,

50
8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
E 

R
en

fr
ew

sh
ire

 
6,

91
2,

67
9 

1,
58

9,
32

0
1,

25
1,

39
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Fa

lk
irk

 
9,

57
2,

44
9 

2,
92

4,
95

9
2,

53
8,

67
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

ve
rc

ly
de

 
5,

21
7,

89
8 

1,
16

3,
74

5
89

7,
83

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
 L

an
ar

ks
hi

re
 

20
,0

00
,7

65
 

4,
99

7,
41

1
4,

12
9,

54
1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

en
fr

ew
sh

ire
 

10
,6

33
,9

39
 

2,
59

2,
26

3
2,

08
7,

27
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

 D
un

ba
rt

on
sh

ire
 

3,
89

0,
24

8 
1,

18
0,

45
3

1,
02

0,
99

8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
71

1,
36

9,
97

8 
18

5,
60

4,
21

3
15

0,
59

6,
17

5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                             

Page 18



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

  
7

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
C

on
tin

ue
d 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1.

 R
es

ul
ts

 fo
r Y

ea
r 

20
14

 
  

  
20

09
 =

 5
yr

s,
 2

01
4 

= 
10

yr
s,

 2
01

9 
= 

15
yr

s 
  

2.
 B

ac
kl

og
 M

od
el

 
Si

ng
le

 D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
C

os
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3.

 S
te

ad
y 

St
at

e 
Sp

lit
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4.
 B

ac
kl

og
 F

ac
to

r o
n 

un
it 

ra
te

s 
20

%
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5.

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
ac

to
r o

n 
B

ac
kl

og
 

30
%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6.
 D

es
ig

n 
Li

fe
 Y

ea
rs

 
30

 
  

A
 U

rb
an

 
  

30
A

 R
ur

al
  

  
  

30
 

  
B

 U
rb

an
 

  
30

B
 R

ur
al

  
  

  
45

 
  

C
 U

rb
an

 
  

45
C

 R
ur

al
  

  
  

45
 

  
U

 U
rb

an
 

  
45

U
 R

ur
al

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
7.

 T
ar

ge
t D

ef
ec

ts
 

8%
 

  
A

 U
rb

an
 

  
8%

A
 R

ur
al

  
  

  
8%

 
  

B
 U

rb
an

 
  

8%
B

 R
ur

al
  

  
  

12
%

 
  

C
 U

rb
an

 
  

12
%

C
 R

ur
al

  
  

  
15

%
 

  
U

 U
rb

an
 

  
15

%
U

 R
ur

al
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
 

  
G

ro
up

 
To

ta
l B

ac
kl

og
 

  
To

ta
l S

te
ad

y 
St

at
e 

  
  

  
  

  
C

iti
es

 
16

76
09

60
7.

9 
  

30
42

89
76

.6
8 

  
  

  
  

  
Is

la
nd

s 
28

03
21

01
.6

4 
  

76
33

95
6.

14
3 

  
  

  
  

  
R

ur
al

 
24

03
50

80
9.

5 
  

55
25

79
32

.4
8 

  
  

  
  

  
Se

m
i U

rb
an

 
£2

12
,4

16
,5

41
 

  
£4

3,
16

3,
99

7 
  

  
  

  
  

U
rb

an
 

£6
2,

96
0,

91
8 

  
£1

4,
11

1,
31

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
To

ta
l 

£7
11

,3
69

,9
78

 
  

£1
50

,5
96

,1
75

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Page 19



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 2

  
8

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

3 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

 
   PI

 N
o 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
L

oc
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

  
In

di
ca

to
r 

L
oc

al
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 T

ar
ge

t 

LP
I 1

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

de
fe

ct
s w

hi
ch

 p
re

se
nt

 a
 

ha
za

rd
 to

 ro
ad

s u
se

rs
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

de
al

t w
ith

 in
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fu
lfi

ls
 

its
 st

at
ut

or
y 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
w

ith
 re

ga
rd

s t
o 

ro
ad

 sa
fe

ty
. 

 

%
 o

f C
at

eg
or

y 
1 

de
fe

ct
s r

ep
ai

re
d 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ne
xt

 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
. 

To
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 a
ll 

re
po

rte
d 

ca
te

go
ry

 1
 d

ef
ec

ts
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ne
xt

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

. 

LP
I 2

 
To

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
he

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

la
n 

on
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f r
ea

ct
iv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

R
ea

ct
iv

e 
re

pa
irs

 a
s %

 
of

 re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
. 

To
 se

e 
ye

ar
 o

n 
ye

ar
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 %

 o
f r

ev
en

ue
 b

ud
ge

t s
pe

nt
 

on
 re

ac
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
. 

LP
I 3

 
To

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s a
nd

 
ro

bu
st

ne
ss

 o
f s

af
et

y 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
gi

m
e 

an
d 

le
ve

l o
f p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t. 

 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ub

lic
 

lia
bi

lit
y 

cl
ai

m
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 p
er

 1
00

km
 o

f 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k.

 
 

To
 se

e 
ye

ar
 o

n 
ye

ar
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 n

um
be

r o
f p

ub
lic

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
cl

ai
m

s. 

LP
I 4

 
To

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s o
f t

he
 

ro
ut

in
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
N

um
be

r o
f d

ef
ec

ts
 

re
po

rte
d 

du
rin

g 
sa

fe
ty

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
 

To
 se

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f d

ef
ec

ts
 a

s 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t. 
LP

I 5
 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s o

f c
ap

ita
l 

re
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

%
 o

f s
ch

em
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

re
su

rf
ac

in
g 

in
 a

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r t

ha
t a

re
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
  

 

To
 c

om
pl

et
e 

10
0%

 o
f c

ap
ita

l 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

  
 

 

Page 20



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004 – 2005. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all 

audits completed during the prior year.  Internal Audit also document the progress made 
by departmental management in implementing the recommendations made by Audit 
Scotland and Internal Audit. A new reporting system was introduced and approved by the 
Audit Committee in August 2004. Set out below is the results from a review performed 
by Internal Audit for recommendations due to be implemented by the 31st March 2005.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Appendix 1 is a statistical summary of the 2003/04 and 2004/05 Internal Audit 

reports issued prior to December 2004. It details the number of recommendations 
contained in each report, number of recommendations to be implemented by the 
follow up date, the number implemented and those past their implementation date. 
The implementation date used for reporting to this Audit Committee is the 31st 
March 2005. A reference column has been added to provide a link to Appendix 2, 
where reasons are given by local management as to why recommendations have 
not been implemented by the agreed date.  The same layout has been used for the 
follow up of Audit Scotland report recommendations. 

    
  3.2  Appendix 1 is split into 2 documents 1a & 1b. The first document refers to all 

reports with recommendations due January to March 2005. The second document 
lists action points outstanding from the previous Audit Committee. These are 
points that should have been implemented by the 31st of December 2004 for the 
last Audit Committee. The same layout has been used for the reporting of Audit 
Scotland report recommendations in Appendices 3 & 4.   

    
  3.3 Appendix 2, details under each report’s title the recommendation that is still to be 

implemented the department and Head of Service responsible, and an explanation 
for the delay, the level of risk, original and a revised implementation date.  

    
  3.4  All new external audit reports issued by Audit Scotland to the Council are reported 

initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary and 
action plan. Thereafter they will be included in the summary list in Appendices 3 
& 4 of this report. 

    
   REQUESTED SERVICE REPORTS  
    
  3.5 The Audit Committee on the 4th March 2005 requested that the Chief Executive 

provide reasons for the delay encountered with the Ferry Services Review. As a 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



result a report has been prepared by the Head of Roads & Amenity Services, 
detailing the reason for the delay. See Appendix 5.  

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.   
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager (01546 
604271) 
Alex Colligan 
Internal Audit Manager   13 May 2005.  
13mayfinalreport13may  

Page 22



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 A

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 W
it

h
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 D

u
e

 F
ro

m
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 T

o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

5

A
u

d
it

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

u
m

b
e

r
P

o
in

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y

 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
5

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

/ 

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v

id
e

n
c

e
 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 t

o
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
8

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
L

e
d

g
e

r 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 -

 M
a

y
 2

0
0

4
2
4

1
1

1
1

0

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

T
e

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 &

 V
e

tt
in

g
 -

 M
a

y
 2

0
0

4
2
3

2
5

2
5

0

J
o

in
t 

F
u

tu
re

s
 -

 M
a

y
 2

0
0

4
2
6

1
0

1
B

1
0

2
0

0
4

/0
5

1
2

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

 T
o

 D
a

te

Y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 S

to
c
k
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 -

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
4

2
3

3
0

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
T

ra
d

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

9
2

2
0

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

8
1

2
1

0
2

D
6

&
9

S
u

n
d

ry
 D

e
b

to
rs

 -
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

1
2

3
3

0

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 F

e
rr

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 -
 M

a
y
 2

0
0

4
1

3
1

2
A

1
2

,1
6

T
o

ta
l

6
0

5
5

5

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 B

P
o

in
ts

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

A
u

d
it

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

u
m

b
e

r

P
o

in
ts

 S
ti

ll
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
5

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d

S
c

h
e

d
u

le
/

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

e
v

id
e

n
c

e

re
c

e
iv

e
d

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 t

o
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
8

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 &

 N
D

R
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
3

4
1

1
1

0

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 -

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
4

1
4

1
1

1
0

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
4

2
0

6
6

0
6

E
1

,5
,6

,1
3

,1
4

,1
5

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 V
F

M
 -

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0

4
2
8

3
3

3
0

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

&
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 -

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
4

2
7

4
4

3
1

F
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

9
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 T

o
 D

a
te

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 F

e
rr

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 -
 M

a
y
 2

0
0

4
1

7
7

1
6

A
2

,6
,8

,1
1

,1
4

,1
5

C
a

s
h

 a
n

d
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 B
a

n
k
in

g
 -

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
4

4
1

1
1

0

C
a

r 
A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

6
1

1
0

1
C

2

T
o

ta
l

2
4

2
4

1
0

1
4

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 –

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it  
 A

 –
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 F
er

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

Fa
re

s 
ar

e 
qu

ite
 

hi
gh

 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
bu

t 
ar

e 
no

t 
re

la
te

d 
to

 a
 

ta
rg

et
 le

ve
l o

f i
nc

om
e 

or
 a

 
se

t l
ev

el
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 
re

vi
ew

 
on

go
in

g 
– 

at
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

st
ag

e.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

04
 

 

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
w

as
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 t
o 

S
P

C
 

on
 5

th
 M

ay
 2

00
5.

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

to
 

en
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5.

 
6 

Th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 fe
rry

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

e 
no

t s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 c
le

ar
 ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
th

at
 

da
ta

 is
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4 
A

s 
ab

ov
e.

 

8 
O

nl
y 

th
e 

Li
sm

or
e 

fe
rr

y 
ha

s 
a 

co
m

m
en

ts
 

/ 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

fo
r 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
ei

r v
ie

w
s 

on
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

11
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 

th
e 

op
er

at
or

s 
of

 t
he

 J
ur

a 
an

d 
Li

sm
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ar
e 

ad
he

rin
g 

to
 t

he
 t

er
m

s 
of

 
th

ei
r c

on
tra

ct
s.

 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 27



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

12
 

A
ud

it 
re

vi
ew

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ad

va
nt

ag
es

 
fo

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
ou

t 
ei

th
er

 t
he

 
op

er
at

io
n 

or
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fe
rr

ie
s 

or
 

br
in

gi
ng

 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
in

 h
ou

se
. 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 
re

vi
ew

 
on

go
in

g 
– 

at
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

st
ag

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

5 
Th

e 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 t

o 
S

P
C

 
on

 5
th
 M

ay
 2

00
5.

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

to
 

en
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
5.

 

14
 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 la
ck

 
of

 
co

ns
en

su
s 

as
 

to
 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
th

at
 

th
e 

fe
rr

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
sh

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4
A

s 
ab

ov
e.

 

15
 

S
ee

 p
oi

nt
 1

4 
ab

ov
e.

 
H

ea
d 

of
 R

oa
ds

 
an

d 
A

m
en

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

16
 

In
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it 

ha
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ris
ks

 o
f o

pe
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

fe
rry

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

a 
th

ird
 

pa
rty

 
in

 
va

rio
us

 
op

tio
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 f
ut

ur
e 

of
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 

an
d 

A
m

en
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
5 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

       

Page 28



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

C
 –

 J
oi

nt
 F

ut
ur

es
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
10

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f k

ey
 

st
ep

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
in

gl
e 

sh
ar

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 

C
ar

e 
A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
S

in
gl

e 
S

ha
re

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
re

 w
el

l 
ad

va
nc

ed
 a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

S
in

gl
e 

S
ha

re
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r a

ll 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up
s 

ac
ro

ss
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l 

W
or

k 
st

af
f. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
• 

H
av

en
’t 

pr
op

er
ly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 
H

ou
si

ng
 s

ta
ff.

 
 

• 
S

ys
te

m
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

pe
r 

sy
st

em
. T

im
es

ca
le

 fo
r e

-c
ar

e 
so

lu
tio

n 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

 s
in

ce
 S

co
tti

sh
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
“p

ul
le

d”
 e

-c
ar

e 
fro

m
 

M
G

F3
 fu

nd
in

g.
 W

e 
aw

ai
t f

ur
th

er
 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

t f
ro

m
 S

co
tti

sh
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
re

 fu
tu

re
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

  

M
at

er
ia

l 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 
N

ot
e 

S
in

gl
e 

S
ha

re
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
pr

es
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 

up
da

te
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

fo
r N

H
S

, S
oc

ia
l 

W
or

k 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

ta
ff 

pr
io

r t
o 

30
th
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
05

 

    

Page 29



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

D
 –

 C
ar

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

S
om

e 
st

af
f 

m
ay

 
no

t 
be

 
aw

ar
e 

of
 

th
e 

ba
si

c 
gu

id
el

in
es

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

an
d 

su
bm

is
si

on
 

of
 

tra
ve

l 
cl

ai
m

s.
  

  

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 H
ea

ds
 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 - 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
 d

ra
ft 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 f

or
 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
&

 
S

oc
ia

l 
W

or
k 

de
pa

rtm
en

t a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

is
 

lo
ok

in
g 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t 
it 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t. 
  

M
at

er
ia

l 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
4

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 

 E
 –

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 R

ev
ie

w
  

 6 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

pe
rs

on
ne

l 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
ar

e 
no

t 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 
P

er
so

nn
el

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
W

or
k 

no
t 

ye
t 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
du

e 
to

 
re

so
ur

ce
 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 

M
at

er
ia

l 
C

om
m

en
ce

 
a.

s.
a.

p.
 

re
po

rt 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 

R
ev

is
ed

 
ta

rg
et

 
da

te
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

05
. 

9 
 

Th
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

ct
io

ns
 f

ro
m

 
th

is
 r

ev
ie

w
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 
re

po
rte

d 
on

. 

Le
ad

 o
ffi

ce
r o

f 
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
R

ev
ie

w
 

Te
am

 

A
 

re
po

rt 
w

en
t 

th
e 

S
M

T 
on

 
16

th
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
. 

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

at
 re

po
rt 

w
as

 to
 

lo
ok

 
at

 
en

te
rin

g 
in

to
 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 a

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 l

eg
al

 f
irm

. 
Th

at
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

w
as

 
ta

ke
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

an
d 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 

re
po

rts
 

to
 

th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 (S

M
T)

 o
n 

th
e 

m
at

te
r 

cu
lm

in
at

in
g 

in
 a

n 
ad

ve
rt 

ap
pe

ar
in

g 
in

 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

05
 

A
fte

r M
ay

 2
00

5 

Page 30



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

bo
th

 
th

e 
S

co
ts

m
an

 
an

d 
th

e 
H

er
al

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
la

st
 

fe
w

 
w

ee
ks

 
se

ek
in

g 
ex

pr
es

si
on

s 
of

 in
te

re
st

 fr
om

 le
ga

l f
irm

s.
 

Th
e 

cl
os

in
g 

da
te

 
fo

r 
ex

pr
es

si
on

s 
of

 
in

te
re

st
 i

s 
26

th
 M

ay
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 a
n 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

.  
 F 

– 
Pr

op
er

ty
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 d

ec
id

e 
w

he
th

er
 

a 
si

ng
le

 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

as
se

t 
re

gi
st

er
 s

ys
te

m
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ad

op
te

d.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

&
 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

Th
e 

C
hi

ef
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
er

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 a

 
re

po
rt 

‘A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t U
pd

at
e’

 to
 

th
e 

A
ug

us
t A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. N

ow
 th

at
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

id
e 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

, a
 

re
po

rt 
is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 S

M
T 

on
 2

4th
 

M
ay

 2
00

5 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 th

e 
w

ay
 fo

rw
ar

d 
an

d 
re

qu
es

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

is
 

is
su

e.
 

 

H
ig

h 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
04

 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
af

te
r S

M
T 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 2

4th
 

M
ay

 2
00

5.
 

5 
A

 
un

iq
ue

 
G

az
et

te
er

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 
R

eg
is

te
rs

 
to

 
as

si
st

 c
ro

ss
-re

fe
re

nc
in

g.
 

      

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

&
 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
H

ig
h 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

04
 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

af
te

r S
M

T 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
4th

 
M

ay
 2

00
5.

 

Page 31



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
6 

A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
tit

le
 

de
ed

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 t

he
 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

A
ss

et
 

R
eg

is
te

r. 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
 la

ck
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 h

as
 m

ea
nt

 th
at

 th
is

 
ta

sk
 h

as
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
le

ss
 q

ui
ck

ly
 th

an
 

ha
d 

be
en

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
.  

H
ig

h 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
04

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
5 

13
 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
ro

pe
rty

 d
at

a 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
ob

ta
in

ed
 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
tim

et
ab

le
 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n.
 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

&
 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

Th
e 

C
hi

ef
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
er

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 a

 
re

po
rt 

‘A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t U
pd

at
e’

 to
 

th
e 

A
ug

us
t A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. N

ow
 th

at
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 c

ou
nc

il 
w

id
e 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

, a
 

re
po

rt 
is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 S

M
T 

on
 2

4th
 

M
ay

 2
00

5 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 th

e 
w

ay
 fo

rw
ar

d 
an

d 
re

qu
es

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

is
 

is
su

e.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 o
nc

e 
C

hi
ef

 A
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
er

 in
 

po
st

. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

af
te

r S
M

T 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
4th

 
M

ay
 2

00
5.

 

14
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
&

 I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

sh
ou

ld
 fo

rm
ul

at
e 

a 
w

or
ki

ng
 

gr
ou

p 
m

ad
e 

up
 

of
 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
rib

ut
or

s 
of

 
pr

op
er

ty
 

da
ta

 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

&
 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 o
nc

e 
C

hi
ef

 A
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
er

 in
 

po
st

. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

af
te

r S
M

T 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
4th

 
M

ay
 2

00
5.

 

15
 

A
n 

ex
er

ci
se

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
ho

w
 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

pr
op

er
ty

 
IT

 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
fo

r 
su

pp
ly

in
g 

da
ta

 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

as
se

t m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 

w
he

n 
th

is
 is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

&
 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Lo
w

 
D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 o
nc

e 
C

hi
ef

 A
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
er

 in
 

po
st

. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

af
te

r S
M

T 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
4th

 
M

ay
 2

00
5.

 

Page 32



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x2

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

  G
 –

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t &

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 

        R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
4 

Th
er

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 
be

 
an

 
ag

re
ed

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

fo
r 

ad
di

ng
 n

ew
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

 
to

 
or

 
de

le
tin

g 
ob

so
le

te
 

su
pp

lie
rs

 
fro

m
 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 li
st

. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 IC
T 

&
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r c
re

at
in

g 
a 

su
pp

lie
r w

hi
ch

 b
as

ic
al

ly
 in

vo
lv

e 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 fo

r e
xi

st
en

ce
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 p

la
ci

ng
 th

e 
co

rr
ec

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 e
ac

h 
fie

ld
. A

 m
aj

or
 fl

aw
 is

 
th

at
 b

y 
th

e 
tim

e 
C

re
di

to
rs

 s
ec

tio
n 

ar
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 th
e 

tra
ns

ac
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

Th
er

e 
do

es
n’

t a
pp

ea
r t

o 
be

 a
ny

 c
on

tro
ls

 
in

 p
la

ci
ng

 o
rd

er
s 

w
ith

 n
ew

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 s
ol

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
gl

ob
al

 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 e
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 a

 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
. 

C
re

di
to

rs
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
re

po
rt 

on
 n

ew
 

su
pp

lie
rs

 c
re

at
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

O
ra

cl
e 

to
 

C
om

in
o 

in
te

rfa
ce

 o
n 

su
pp

lie
r d

at
a 

up
da

te
s 

fro
m

 m
id

 M
ay

 2
00

5.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

A
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
fte

r 
Ju

ne
 2

00
4 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 A

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e

p
o

rt
 F

o
ll

o
w

 u
p

 -
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

 W
it

h
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 D

u
e

 F
ro

m
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 T

o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
5

A
u

d
it

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 

b
y

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
5

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

/ 

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

e
v

id
e

n
c

e
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 t

o
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 

4

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 B

P
o

in
ts

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

A
u

d
it

P
o

in
ts

 S
ti

ll
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
5

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

/ 

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

e
v

id
e

n
c

e
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 t

o
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

R
e

g
u

la
ri
ty

 &
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 (
3

) 
2

0
0

3
/0

4
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
4

3
3

1
2

A
1

7
 &

1
8

T
o

ta
l

3
3

1
2

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

2\
2\

5\
A

I0
00

22
52

2\
A

pp
en

di
x4

to
Ite

m
10

0.
do

c 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 - 

A
ud

it 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 R

ep
or

ts
 

 A
 –

R
eg

ul
ar

ity
 &

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

(3
) 2

00
3/

04
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
17

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

po
lic

y 
on

 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s.
 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

&
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 w
he

n 
ne

w
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

O
rd

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 la
te

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
. 

Lo
w

 
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

04
 

N
ow

 g
oi

ng
 to

 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

 2
6 

M
ay

 2
00

5.
 

18
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
po

lic
y 

on
 

Fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
to

 
de

fin
e 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
an

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

of
 s

us
pe

ct
ed

 
ca

se
s.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

sh
ou

ld
 

al
so

 o
ut

lin
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

ac
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

 th
is

 re
sp

ec
t. 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

&
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 w
he

n 
ne

w
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

O
rd

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 la
te

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

04
 

N
ow

 g
oi

ng
 to

 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

 2
6 

M
ay

 2
00

5.
 

          

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5 

 1

 
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

OPERATIONAL SERVICES 3 JUNE 2005
 
 
FERRY SERVICES REVIEW 
 
 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
 At the Audit Committee Meeting on 4 March it was noted that the original timescale 

for the completion of Ferry Services Review of September 2004, had now slipped to 
May 2005.  The Audit Committee requested that the Chief Executive advise on the 
reasons for the delay in the Ferry Services review. To this end a report was 
prepared by the Head of Roads & Amenity Services. The main reason for delay is 
that the Value for Money Ferry Review was subsequently included in the strategic 
review of piers and harbours.  Full detail is enclosed explaining the reason for 
slippage. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The committee is asked to note the contents of the report.  
 
 
3. DETAIL 
 
3.1 In April 2004, a paper was submitted to the Strategic Policy Committee outlining the 

need to review the operation of the Council owned ferry services.  At that stage it 
was considered appropriate that Internal Audit carried out  a Value for Money 
Report on this service 

 
3.2 This review was undertaken in April and May 2004.  An action plan was prepared.  

The vast majority of the action dates were either immediate (value vessels, ferry 
reliability, comment procedures, Disclosure checks, insurance issues) or to be 
completed by September 2004 (fare recovery levels, repair/maintenance regime).  
The issue of considering the potential advantages for contracting out elements of 
the service had an implementation date of February 2005. 

 
3.3 In general terms, the vast majority of the actions have been addressed. 
 
3.4 Around the same time the Value for Money Review on Ferries was carried out, it 

was confirmed that a Strategic Review should also be carried out on Piers and 
Harbours.  It was considered appropriate that as there were elements of the ferries 
review that were strategic in nature then this should be incorporated into the 
strategic review. 

 

Page 41



APPENDIX 5 

 2

3.5 Work has been ongoing on the Piers, Harbours and Ferries Review and due to the 
workload involved it was not possible to adhere to the timescales stated in the 
Ferries review.  The draft review was completed in November and submitted to the 
SMT and SMOG for approval to issue the report for consultation.  The report was 
approved at SPC on 5 May, and the document was issued for consultation on 16 
May with a return date for responses of 30 June.  The responses will be collated 
and a report shall be taken to the SPC in late summer/early autumn. 

 
3.6  It was considered appropriate that the Ferry Services Review should be included in 

the Strategic Review of Piers and Harbours.  Accordingly due to the timescales for 
the strategic review it was not possible to complete the Ferry Review prior to the 
Capital Budget Meeting on 17 March 2005. 

 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
 5.1 Policy –  The effect on policy cannot be determined until the 

conclusion of the Piers, Harbours and Ferries 
Strategic Review. 

 5.2 Financial –  None at present. 
 5.3 Personnel –  None at present. 
 5.4 Equal Opportunities –  None. 
 5.5 Legal –  None at present. 
 
 
 
For further information, please contact Stewart Turner (Tel: 01546 604611). 
 
 
Stewart Turner 
Head of Roads & Amenity Services 
 
 

Page 42



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2004 - 2005 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
   
  As indicated to the Audit Committee on the 27th of May 2004 an Annual Report will be 

presented that comments on the duties and audits carried out by Internal Audit throughout 
the financial year. The Annual Report for 2004 – 2005 is appended in Appendix 1. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The Internal Annual Audit Report for 2004 - 2005 is approved.  
      
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 The objective of the report attached in Appendix 1, is to advise members of 

internal audit standards, current practices and comment on the performance of 
Internal Audit throughout the financial year 2004 - 2005. 

    
  3.2 Appendix 2 provides a progress statement on the audits scheduled for 2004 – 

2005. Further comment on audit performance is given within the main report for: 
• Core Financial Audits; 
• Non Core financial Audits; 
• Contingency; and  
• Other Areas. 

    
  3.3 There is only one Core Financial Audit where the fieldwork and draft report are 

still to be completed. It is anticipated that by the end of May 2005 this audit will 
be complete with an audit report and agreed action plan issued.     

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Internal Audit will compile an Annual Report on audit responsibilities and 

activities.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
  
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 43



For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager 27 April 2005.    
27Aprilreport27April  

Page 44



APPENDIX 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

2004 - 2005 
  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2005 
 

Page 45



APPENDIX 1 

 

INDEX 
 
 Page  
 
 
1. Foreword ..................................................................................................1 
 
2. Mission Statement ....................................................................................1 
 
3. Terms of Reference..................................................................................1 
  Objectives ........................................................................................1 
  Scope...............................................................................................2 
 
4. Main Services and Reporting ...................................................................2 
  Core Financial Audits .......................................................................2 
  Non Financial Audits ........................................................................2 
  Contingency Days............................................................................3 
  Reporting .........................................................................................3 
   Audit Committee ......................................................................3 
   Auditees...................................................................................3 
 
5. External Audit ...........................................................................................4 
 
6. Statement of Internal Financial Control ....................................................5 
 
7. Progress on Annual Audit Plan 2004 - 2005.............................................5 
                    Audit Opinion ................................................................................7 
 
8. Audit Analysis of 2004 - 2005...................................................................7 
 
9. Contingency Days ....................................................................................7 
 
10. Internal Audit Performance Measurement ................................................8 
 
 
 
Appendix 1: Assessment of Audit days 2004 – 2005 Strategic Plan 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



APPENDIX 1 

- 1 - 

 
 
 

1. FOREWORD 
 
The annual audit plan has been delivered in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom (‘the Code’).  This requires the 
Internal Audit section to provide an objective assessment of the adequacy, reliability and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control system. This annual audit plan also takes into 
account the Internal Audit Mission Statement and Terms of Reference both of which have 
previously been approved by the Audit Committee. 

 
2. MISSION STATEMENT  
 
“To contribute to the achievement of Argyll and Bute Council’s mission and strategic 
objectives by providing assurance to the Council that financial and operational 
controls and arrangements for Best Value are functioning efficiently and effectively 
and that the significant risks to the organisation are being managed.” 
 
3. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Objectives 

• To assist the Council and its Strategic Management Team in their governance 
responsibilities: that is, to support them in creating a mechanism to deliver an 
effective and efficient risk management and control framework; and to assist 
them in the corporate governance reporting process. 

• To provide assurance on the adequacy of control within the Council’s systems 
and activities: that is to comment on and recommend appropriate changes to 
mechanisms put in place by management to ensure systems and activities 
achieve their objectives; and to bring deficiencies therein to the notice of 
operational management and ultimately to the Audit Committee. 

• To advise management on cost effective controls for new or modified systems 
and activities; 

• To highlight opportunities to reduce costs through greater economy and 
efficiency within systems and activities. 

• Internal Audit areas of focus include: 

• Internal control effectiveness 

• Statutory, procedures and control compliance 

• Implementation of recommendations 

• Corporate governance 

• Systems development 

• Process improvement 

• Value for money and Best Value 

Page 47



APPENDIX 1 

- 2 - 

Over time it is envisaged that the function will increase the proportion of performance 
reviews of operational systems, value for money and contribute to Best Value Audit.  
 

Scope 
The scope of internal audit includes the examination and evaluation the adequacy 
and reliability of the Council’s system of internal control. Internal Audit’s work 
provides assurance across all of the Council’s activities regarding the extent to which 
management controls ensure that: 

• significant risks are identified, assessed and appropriately managed; 

• objectives are established and achievement against them is monitored; 

• the Council’s assets are safeguarded from significant losses, including those 
caused by fraud, waste, inefficiency and commercially unsound practices; 

• relevant laws, rules and regulations are complied with; 

• operations are conducted effectively, efficiently and economically; 

• operations are conducted in accordance with Council policies and procedures; 

• management information systems are reliable and secure; 

• systems under development are monitored, that appropriate internal controls are 
built in and are consistent with the organisations’ needs; 

• major Council projects achieve their objectives; and 

• throughout the Council’s activities it can demonstrate good governance. 

 
In addition, Internal Audit may perform special reviews requested by the senior 
management or the Audit Committee. When plans are changed for such reviews, this 
is reported to the Audit Committee so that it clearly understands the implications on 
resources and for the assurance it requires about internal controls, and any impact 
on the delivery of agreed plans. 
 
4. MAIN SERVICES AND REPORTING 
 
To fulfil our responsibility the main services provided are: 
 
CORE FINANCIAL AUDITS 

 
Internal Audit has a responsibility to evaluate and test financial and management 
information systems in order to provide an opinion as to the adequacy of control 
within the Council. As a result of this work departmental management receive audit 
reports with recommendations offering suggestions and advice to enable rectification 
of system weaknesses and to assist them with compliance and risk control. 
 
NON FINANCIAL AUDITS  
 
The Code requires that internal audit not only look at financial systems but also other 
systems of management control used to ensure the Council’s objectives are being 

Page 48



APPENDIX 1 

- 3 - 

properly managed, and that control arrangements have been established and 
operated within the Council to achieve Best Value, VFM and Performance 
Improvement in service delivery. Internal Audit in complying with the Code, has 
prepared this section of the annual plan incorporating high risk areas identified by 
Heads of Service in a recent operational risk exercise carried out between the 
Corporate Services Department - Governance & Risk section, Internal Audit and its 
partner. 
 
CONTINGENCY DAYS 
 
This is audit time for unforeseen events which, by their nature, cannot be planned for, 
e.g.: 

• notification of frauds, significant weaknesses or loss; 
• consideration of controls for new or amended systems; and 
• reviews of significant breakdown of internal control that cannot be 

accommodated within planned audits. 

Clearly, the extent to which any contingency requirement will arise depends on the 
soundness of the Council’s systems of control and the incidence of fraud or 
irregularity. 
 
REPORTING 
 
Audit Committee 
 
At each Audit Committee throughout the year issues pertaining to the progress of the 
audit programme in terms of planned to actual are passed to the Audit Committee for 
their advice. Recommendations made by external audit are followed up and progress 
regarding implementation reported to the Audit Committee. At the culmination of the 
years audit work an annual report is prepared and presented to the Audit Committee.  
Our annual report provides an overall audit opinion as to the adequacy of the control 
environment within the Council. This has been derived from the Internal Financial 
Control Statement (IFCS) passed to the Head of Strategic Finance as Section 95 
Officer to enable a statement to be placed in the Annual Accounts.  
 
Internal Audit also reviews and documents the progress made by departmental 
management in implementing report recommendations made by Audit Scotland and 
Internal Audit. Internal Audit was concerned that the process of collecting evidence 
and subsequent reporting was inefficient for departments, internal audit and the Audit 
Committee. A new reporting system was therefore devised and was first reported to 
the Audit Committee in August 2004. The new system provides the Audit Committee 
with objective reporting on management progress with their implementation of agreed 
recommendations. 
 
Auditees 
 
With regard to internal audit reporting on audits carried out, we provide management 
with an independent and objective opinion on the control environment by taking into 
consideration the review of internal controls and risk, and recommend changes 

Page 49



APPENDIX 1 

- 4 - 

where appropriate in agreement with management. The internal audit work 
undertaken is reported to clients, either in the form of a report or a memo whichever 
is the most relevant. Our reports are in a standard format that give a pictorial view of 
the findings of each audit and ranks their importance in severity of control weakness. 
All report findings are discussed with management for their collective buy-in to our 
findings. Follow-up reviews are planned within the audit plan.  
 
Set out below are the classifications used by Internal Audit when reporting our 
findings. 
 

 
5. EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 
The relationship operated by Internal Audit with the Council’s External Auditors is one 
of joint working where we try to either avoid areas of duplication and in other areas 
work jointly on large system control issues. Consultations are held on a regular and 
informal basis to co-ordinate work and we use Audit Scotland audit programmes to 
carry out our audit work. In 2004 – 2005 external and internal audit worked jointly on 
the Housing Benefit Grant Claim and the Council Performance Indicators.  
 
On an annual basis Audit Scotland carry out an evaluation of Internal Audit work the 
outcome of which is published in their Annual Accounts report. For 2003 – 2004 
Internal Audit received a favourable report and we would hope that this would 
continue for 2004 - 2005.   
 
Audit Scotland conducted a review of all local authority internal audit provision across 
Scotland in the autumn of 2000 this culminated in the issue of a report in August 
2001 entitled, “A job worth doing”. Its assessment of internal audit compliance with 
the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice 
for Internal Audit in Local Government placed Argyll & Bute in the bottom quartile of 
local authorities in Scotland, Band 4. As a result the Council appointed KPMG to act 
as a partner to internal audit to assist and provide advice on best practice in relation 
to the code. 
 
With the support of KPMG internal audit systems subsequently improved and in 
January 2004 Audit Scotland carried out a follow up review exercise to see whether 

Fundamental Major observations on high level controls and other important 
internal controls.  Significant matters relating to factors critical to 
the success of the objectives of the system.  The weakness may 
therefore give rise to loss or error 

Material Observations on less important internal controls, improvements 
to the efficiency and effectiveness of controls which will assist in 
meeting the objectives of the system and items which could be 
significant in the future.  The weakness is not necessarily great, 
but the risk of error would be significantly reduced it if were 
rectified 

Minor Minor recommendations to improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of controls and one-off items subsequently 
corrected.  The weakness does not appear to affect the ability of 
the system to meet its objectives in any significant way 

Page 50



APPENDIX 1 

- 5 - 

any improvement had taken place in respect of compliance with the Code. The 
results of the exercise showed that there had been a substantial improvement in 
Internal Audit compliance with the Code. Argyll & Bute Council was placed in Band 1. 
  
 
6. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT (IFCS) 
 
It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an appropriate 
and sound system of internal control and to monitor the continuing effectiveness of 
that system.  For the Council’s annual accounts for the financial year 2004 - 05 it is 
the responsibility of Internal Audit to provide an annual overall assessment of the 
robustness of the internal financial control system and to provide an IFCS for the 
Head of Strategic Finance as Section 95 Officer. 
 
The main objectives of the Council’s internal financial control systems are: 
 

• To ensure adherence to management policies and directives in order to 
achieve the organisation’s objectives; 

• To safeguard assets; 
• To secure the relevance, reliability and integrity of information, so 

ensuring as far as possible the completeness and accuracy of records; 
and 

• To ensure compliance with statutory requirements. 
 
Evaluation of the control environment is informed by a number of 
sources: 
 

• The work undertaken by internal audit during the year to 31 March 
2005; 

• The assessment of needs completed during the preparation of the 
strategic audit plan; 

• Reports issued by the Council’s external auditors, Audit Scotland. 
• Internal Audit knowledge of the Council’s governance, risk 

management and performance monitoring arrangements. 
 
The IFCS has 2 sections in which Internal Audit is required to give an opinion on the 
Council control environment. The first is on matters brought forward from last year. 
The second is for any new matters arising in 2004 - 2005. Internal financial control 
statements for Strategic Departmental Directors have also been prepared and are in 
the process of being signed. This will support the overall statement of control 
prepared by the Head of Strategic Finance for inclusion in the Council’s Annual 
Accounts. 
 
 
7. PROGRESS ON ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2004 – 2005 
 
Appendix 1, lists of audits that were covered in the financial year 2004 – 05. The 
objective of the report is to advise members of the final status of each audit. 
 

Page 51



APPENDIX 1 

- 6 - 

A total of 31 audits were planned for the financial year these were allocated into the 
following categories: 
 

� 20 Core Financial Systems Audits and  
� 11 Non Financial Systems Audits. 
 

Additional to the above Internal Audit was involved in advice & assistance to 
management and follow up work. 
 
Of 20 Core Financial Systems audits, in the last quarter the decision was taken 
amalgamate the Purchase Ordering & Certification audit with Purchasing of 
Equipment & Materials. Both audits are closely aligned and therefore one audit was 
scoped to cover the audit objectives of both. Of the remaining 19 audits 18 have 
been completed with final reports and agreed action plans issued. The remaining 
audit, Budgetary Preparation & Control is currently being progressed towards 
completion by KPMG. In final analysis of the financial year out of 471 planned audit 
days 457 have been expended as at April 2005. 
 
With regard to Non Core Financial Systems audits eleven were planned and 10 are 
complete with reports and agreed actions plans issued. The remaining audit, DSO 
Catering & Cleaning (NPDO) initially started well and KPMG were able to provide 
support in the initial bid process. However the further involvement that management 
requested of Internal Audit has consistently throughout the year been delayed due to 
issues regarding the progression of the NPDO. Consequently the end of the financial 
year was reached with neither KPMG nor Internal Audit being able to carry out any 
further audit work. In final analysis of the financial year out of 327 planned audit days 
303 days have been expended up to April 2005.  
 
As a result of the demand on Internal Audit resources to provide Advice & Assistance 
to management in 2003 – 2004, the number of Contingency days allocated in 2004 – 
2005 was set at 160 days. At the end of the second quarter it became apparent that 
in 2004 – 2005 there had been less days required than had been experienced in 
2003 – 2004. A decision was therefore taken to reduce the number of days and 
transfer a portion to follow up review work. This was reported to the Audit Committee 
on the 3rd December 2004. In the final analysis out of the 110 planned audit days 93 
have been expended.  
 
In August 2004, Internal Audit in discussion with Audit Scotland and Strategic 
Departmental Directors proposed to the Audit Committee that a change was required 
in the reporting of both external and internal audit report recommendation 
implementation by management .The change was accepted by the Audit Committee 
and now the Audit Committee is provided with more objective responses from 
departmental management regarding recommendations that are not implemented 
within agreed deadlines. There were 101 audit days set aside for Other Areas at the 
commencement of the financial year. At the outset of the new reporting process 
departments required support and 50 audit days were transferred from Contingency 
to cover this and to assist with risk assessment element of the Strategic Audit Plan 
for 2005 - 2008. This was reported to the Audit Committee on the 3rd December 
2004.In the final analysis out of 151 planned audit days 159 days were expended.   
 

Page 52



APPENDIX 1 

- 7 - 

Throughout 2004 – 2005, Internal Audit resources have been tight with 2 members of 
staff seconded over the latter 2 quarters of the financial year. An additional resource 
was brought in on a contract basis to assist with audit plan delivery. This allowed the 
Internal Audit plan to be progressed with disruption kept to a minimum.  
 
 
Audit Opinion 
 
Based on audit work carried out to date, we are of the opinion that the Council’s 
systems provide a reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient 
achievement of the Council’s objectives. We have indicated in our audit reports 
certain matters, which we understand are being addressed by local management; our 
opinion on the Council’s systems is based on recommendations being satisfactorily 
implemented. Additional assurance has been given in an Internal Financial Control 
Statement (IFCS) prepared by internal audit and is the subject of a separate report to 
the Audit Committee. 
 
In conclusion, the audit plan for 2004 – 2005 will be effectively completed by the end 
of May 2005. The Audit Committee is asked to accept the assurances provided by 
Internal Audit, based on the 2004 – 2005 audit work completed.  
 
8. AUDIT ANALYSIS of 2004 - 2005 
 
Whilst there has been some slippage against the actions identified and their target 
dates, the bulk of the planned activity has been achieved, particularly: 
 
• Quarterly reports are prepared for the Audit Committee advising of progress with 

the Annual Audit plan; 
• Joint audit work was completed between Internal Audit and Audit Scotland; 
• A higher percentage of audits continued to be carried out by qualified staff in 2004 

– 2005;  
• Analysis of returned client questionnaires indicated that an average score of 3.5 

has been achieved for all completed audits the highest achievable mark being 4;  
• Regarding the implementation of internal audit report recommendations by the 

client, it was reported that 100% of all fundamental recommendations were 
agreed as was a 100% for major and minor recommendations. 

 
9. CONTINGENCY DAYS 
 
Council Standard Orders require management to report all suspected irregularities or 
issues requiring investigation to Internal Audit.  In practice, many of these are 
resolved best by departmental management investigation and action, with support 
and advice from Internal Audit. All advice, investigation and irregularity issues are 
recorded and it is possible to ascertain what control issues have occurred.   
 
This information can then be used as part of the assessment of relative risk in the 
process of preparing the annual audit plan and also in advising managers across the 
Council of potential risks and opportunities to strengthen controls. This is done 
through our quarterly report that we issue to Directors and Heads of Service entitled 
Audit Focus. 

Page 53



APPENDIX 1 

- 8 - 

 
During 2004 – 2005, 8 instances were reported to and followed up by Internal Audit.  
These required advice & assistance. Internal Audit can call on external professional 
resources to assist with particular technical aspects on any investigation as and when 
required.  Summarised below by directorate are the number of days expended 
against departments. 

 
2004 – 2005 
 
Directorate 

Number of 
Days Expended 

Community Services 27 
Development Services 47 
Operational Services 19 
Total 93 

 
The table below is the further breakdown of the above table indicating the type of 
issues that were covered. 

 
TYPE OF ISSUE REPORTED C 

S 
D 
S 

O 
S 

Advice & Assistance 9 9 9 
 
 
10. INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 
 
At the outset of the financial year 2004 – 2005 Internal Audit was tasked to measure 
the performance of its service delivery. This was to allow comparison to be made 
year-on-year and to set targets for improvement and by meeting such targets, the 
Audit Committee could have confidence that Internal Audit were delivering a quality 
service. 
 
In total there were 11 performance indicators agreed by the Audit Committee in 2002 
for Internal Audit to adhere to and were set out under two headings Input and Output: 
 

• 6 Input indicators and  
• 5 Output measures. 

 
The tables below set out the input and output performance measures for 2004 - 
2005. A comment has been made for each performance indicator. Internal Audit will 
strive to maintain the quality standards achieved and will endeavour to make 
improvements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 

- 9
 - 

IN
PU

T 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
EA

SU
R

ES
 2

00
4 

- 2
00

5 
 

R
ef

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
r 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ch

ie
ve

d 

20
04

-2
00

5 

C
om

m
en

t 

1.
  

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
ca

rri
ed

 
ou

t 
by

 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 

an
d 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
st

af
f. 

65
%

 
80

%
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l 
of

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
st

af
f 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 2
00

4 
- 2

00
5.

 

2.
  

Is
su

e 
of

 
dr

af
t 

re
po

rts
 

w
ith

in
 

10
 

w
or

ki
ng

 
da

ys
 

of
 

w
or

k 
be

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

10
 d

ay
s 

– 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
A

ch
ie

ve
d.

  

3.
  

Is
su

e 
of

 
fin

al
 

re
po

rts
 

w
ith

in
 

5 
w

or
ki

ng
 

da
ys

 
of

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

sp
on

se
s 

be
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

5 
da

ys
 –

 1
00

%
 

10
0%

 
A

ch
ie

ve
d.

  

4.
  

R
ep

or
ts

 d
is

pl
ay

: c
le

ar
 o

pi
ni

on
; 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 o

f p
rio

rit
is

ed
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

es
; a

 p
er

so
n 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e;

 a
nd

 d
at

e 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n.
 

A
ll 

re
po

rts
 

(1
00

%
) 

st
at

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
co

nc
lu

si
on

/o
pi

ni
on

, 
co

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

, 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
, 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
 

da
te

s 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

10
0%

 
A

ll 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es
 m

et
. 

5.
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 fe
ed

 b
ac

k 
on

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 fi

el
dw

or
k.

  
To

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
‘a

ve
ra

ge
’ 

or
 

be
tte

r 
in

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 r

at
in

gs
. 

 (
i.e

.: 
a 

m
ea

n 
sc

or
e 

of
 ‘3

’ o
r m

or
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

qu
es

tio
n 

3.
5 

Th
e 

le
ve

l 
of

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ha

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 2
00

3 
– 

20
04

.  

6.
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 d

ire
ct

 a
ud

it 
tim

e 
Ta

rg
et

 8
1%

 
81

%
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l 
of

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ha

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 2
00

3 
– 

20
04

 a
t 8

1%
. 

 
  

Page 55



 

- 1
0 

-  
O

U
TP

U
T 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
ES

 2
00

4 
- 2

00
5 

 

R
ef

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ch

ie
ve

d 

20
04

- 2
00

5 

C
om

m
en

t 

1.
 

A
ud

it 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
pl

an
 

to
 

be
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

au
di

t 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
by

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

. 

31
 M

ar
ch

 o
f e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 (1
00

%
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

d 
20

05
 - 

20
08

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

20
05

 –
 

20
06

 a
nn

ua
l p

la
n 

w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f t

he
 4

th
 o

f M
ar

ch
 2

00
5.

 
2.

 
Fo

llo
w

-u
ps

 to
 b

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 w

ith
in

 
on

e 
ye

ar
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it-
ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
. 

10
0%

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
ol

lo
w

ed
 

up
 in

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ye

ar
 

- 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

ow
 a

 n
ew

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

fo
llo

w
-u

ps
 a

re
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
as

 a
 r

ou
tin

e 
ta

sk
 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

.  
3.

 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 
pl

an
  

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

va
ria

tio
ns

 
ag

re
ed

 
by

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, 

an
d 

if 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
s.

 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 a

ud
it 

as
si

gn
m

en
ts

 a
s 

in
 2

00
3 

– 
20

04
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 a
ct

ua
l a

ud
it 

da
ys

 to
 b

ud
ge

t. 
A

 n
um

be
r o

f a
ud

its
 

w
er

e 
ei

th
er

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
tim

e 
or

 a
he

ad
 o

f b
ud

ge
t 

w
hi

ls
t o

th
er

s 
to

ok
 m

or
e 

da
ys

 th
an

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
bu

dg
et

ed
. 

H
ow

ev
er

 in
 o

ve
ra

ll 
te

rm
s,

 a
ud

its
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f b

ud
ge

te
d 

au
di

t d
ay

s 
se

t o
ut

 
in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

.  
4.

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
m

ad
e.

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l –

 1
00

%
 

M
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 m
in

or
 - 

10
0%

 

10
0%

 

10
0%

 

A
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

5.
 

In
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 
bu

dg
et

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
-y

ea
r 

bu
dg

et
 

va
ria

tio
ns

) 

10
0%

 (T
ot

al
 c

os
ts

 w
ith

in
 b

ud
ge

t) 
10

0%
 

A
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

   

Page 56



APPENDIX 2

Assessment of audit days: 2004-2005 strategic plan

Last audited Risk ranking Planned Audit Days

2004-05

Actual Audit Days 

2004-05

Balance

Core financial systems

COMPLETE

Government Grants - Education 2003-04 1 21 31 -10

Stock taking 2003-04 1 16 20 -4

Cash & Income Banking - Oban 2003-04 1 21 26 -5

Car Allowances 2003-04 3 21 20 1

Debtor Accounts 2003-04 1 21 30 -9

Direct Transport Costs 2003-04 4 21 25 -4

Unified Benefits System 2003-04 2 51 48 3

Capital Accounting 2003-04 1 21 21 0

Housing Rents 2003-04 1 21 21 0

General Ledger Operations 2003-04 2 21 20 1

Treasury Management 2003-04 2 21 20 1

Tendering Procedures 2003-04 3 21 21 0

Capital Contracts 2003-04 3 21 20 1

Following Public Pound Voluntary Organisations 2003-04 4 21 20 1

HR Payroll 2003-04 3 43 33 10

E-Procurement Creditors 2003-04 2 31 25 6

Council Tax & NDR 2003-04 2 31 26 5

Purchases of Equipment and Materials 2003-04 2 31 26 5

STARTED

Budgetary preparation & control KPMG 2003-04 1 16 4 12

Section Total 471 457 14

Non-financial systems / Best Value / VFM

COMPLETE

Council Wide PIs 2003-04 1 43 42 1

Operational Services Ferry Review 2003-04 2, 8 21 25 -4

Chief Exec BV Interim 2003-04 3 32 31 1

Chief Exec PMP 2003-04 3 35 33 2

DLOs Significant Trading Operations 2003-04 4, 7, 9 21 21 0

Council Wide Corporate Gov. 2003-04 1 32 29 3

Community Services - Transport 2003-04 3, 4, 11 21 29 -8

Corporate Services IT KPMG & IA 2003-04 1 32 31 1

Community Services - Education HMIe 2003-04 9, 10 21 21 0

Corporate Services - BS7799 Information Security 2003-04 3, 6 21 20 1

DSOs Catering and Cleaning (NPDO) KPMG & IA 2003-04 1 48 21 27

Section Total 327 303 24

Actual Direct Audit Time 798 760 38

Special investigations/contingency - - 110 17

Dangerous Buildings 25

Housing Grants 4

HITRANS 4

Cycle Path Grant 18

Warm Deal Grant 12

Joint Future 11

ABLE Grant Funding 9

Strategic Waste Fund Grant 10

Section Total 110 93 17

Other Areas

Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans - - 30 38 -8

Follow-up external audit management letter 51 52 -1

Internal audit follow up 70 69 1

Section Total 151 159 -8

TOTAL 1059 1012 47

APPENDIX 1

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
REPORT ON 2004 - 2005 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT (IFCS) 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an appropriate and 

sound system of internal control and to monitor the continuing effectiveness of that 
system.  For the Council’s annual accounts for the financial year 2004 -2005 it is the 
responsibility of Internal Audit to provide an annual overall assessment of the robustness 
of the Internal Financial Control System (IFCS) for the Head of Strategic Finance. (See 
Appendix 1).  

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 The main objectives of the Council’s internal financial control systems are: 

• To ensure adherence to management policies and directives in order to 
achieve the organisation’s objectives; 

• To safeguard assets; 
• To secure the relevance, reliability and integrity of information, so 

ensuring as far as possible the completeness and accuracy of records; and 
• To ensure compliance with statutory requirements.  

    
    3.2 Evaluation of the control environment is informed by a number of sources: 

• The work undertaken by internal audit during the year to 31st March 2005; 
• The assessment of needs completed during the preparation of the strategic    
       audit plan; 
• Reports issued by the Council’s external auditors, Audit Scotland. 
• Internal Audit knowledge of the Council’s governance, risk management  
      and performance monitoring arrangements. 

 
    
  3.3 The statement has 2 sections in which Internal Audit is required to give an opinion 

on the Council control environment. The first is on matters brought forward from 
last year. The second is new matters arising in 2004 - 2005. Directors internal 
financial control statements are being prepared to support the overall statement of 
control prepared by the Head of Strategic Finance for the Council.  

      
  3.4 The attached statement is in Draft format and maybe updated further until Audit 

Scotland completes their review of the Council’s Annual Accounts for 2004 – 
2005. 

    
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 59



4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Except for the items listed in the IFCS in Appendix 1, it is the opinion of Internal 

Audit, based on the audit work carried out to date, that reasonable assurance can 
be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal financial 
control systems in the year to the 31st March 2005.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   18th May 2005.  
18Mayfinalreport18May 

Page 60



APPENDIX 1 

F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\1\5\AI00022517\Appendix1toItem60.doc 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT  
2004-2005 

DRAFT 
To the Head of Strategic Finance 
 
As Internal Audit Manager of Argyll & Bute Council, I am pleased to present my annual statement on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal financial control system of the Council for the year ended 31 March 2005. 
 
Respective responsibilities of management and internal auditors in relation to internal control 
 
It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an appropriate and sound system of 
internal financial control and to monitor the continuing effectiveness of that system.  It is the responsibility of the 
Internal Audit Manager to provide an annual overall assessment of the robustness of the internal financial control 
system.   
 
Sound internal controls 
 
The main objectives of the Council’s internal financial control system are: 
 

• To ensure adherence to management policies and directives in order to achieve the organisation’s 
objectives; 

 
• To safeguard assets; 

 
• To secure the relevance, reliability and integrity of information, so ensuring as far as possible the 

completeness and accuracy of records; and 
 

• To ensure compliance with statutory requirements. 
 
Any system of financial control can only ever provide reasonable and not absolute assurance that control 
weaknesses or irregularities do not exist or that there is no risk of material errors, losses, fraud, or breaches of 
laws or regulations. Accordingly, the Council is continually seeking to improve the effectiveness of its system of 
internal financial control. 
  
The work of internal audit 
 
Internal Audit is an independent appraisal function established by the management of an organisation for the 
review of the internal control system as a service to the organisation.  It objectively examines, evaluates and 
reports on the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources. 
 
The Internal Audit section operates in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom.  The section 
undertakes an annual programme of work approved by the Audit Committee based on a 3-year strategic audit 
plan.  The strategic audit plan is based on a formal needs assessment process, which is revised on an ongoing 
basis to reflect evolving risks and changes within the Council. 
 
All internal audit reports identifying system weaknesses and/or non-compliance with expected controls are brought 
to the attention of management and include appropriate recommendations and agreed action plans.  It is 
management’s responsibility to ensure that proper consideration is given to internal audit reports and that 
appropriate action is taken on audit recommendations. The internal auditor is required to ensure that appropriate 
arrangements are made to determine whether action has been taken on internal audit recommendations, or that 
management has understood and assumed the risk of not taking action.  Significant matters arising from internal 
audit work are reported to the Head of Strategic Finance, the Chief Executive and the Council’s Audit Committee. 
 
Basis of Opinion 
 
My evaluation of the control environment is informed by a number of sources: 
 
• The audit work undertaken by internal audit during the year to 31 March 2005; 

Page 61



APPENDIX 1 

F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\1\5\AI00022517\Appendix1toItem60.doc 

• The assessment of needs completed during the preparation of the 3 year strategic audit plan; 
• Reports issued by the Council’s external auditors, Audit Scotland; and 
• Internal Audit knowledge of the Council’s governance, risk management and performance monitoring 

arrangements. 
 
Opinion 
 
Except for the following listed matters it is my opinion, based on the above, that reasonable assurance can be 
placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal financial control system in the year to 31 
March 2005:- 
 
Matters brought forward from previous year(s):- 
 

• Revisions to the Contract Standing Orders to overcome the inadequacy of capital control guidelines 
were originally to be completed by 31 July 2004.  Management is currently addressing this issue and 
revised Standing Orders are expected now to be completed and approved by the full Council in May 
2005. 

 
• Capital project management disciplines were to be improved.  Management has taken some steps to 

address this issue, but has not yet fully completed and approved a guidance handbook of procedures. 
The latest estimate is that it is expected to be completed by July 2005. 

 
• A Risk Management Strategy has been now approved by the Strategic Management Team (SMT) and a 

Risk Register compiled. They are to be further developed and implemented during 2005 - 2006. 
 

• An Information Management and Technology Strategy is now in place and has been approved by the 
SMT, this is to be further developed and implemented during 2005 - 2006. 
 

• The Council has now approved an Asset Management Strategy. This is to be further developed and 
implemented during 2005/2006. 
 

• A number of weaknesses were identified in the accounting for property assets in 2003 – 2004. These 
have been progressed in 2004 – 2005 with those remaining weaknesses planned to be addressed 
throughout 2005 - 2006. 

 
New Matters 
 

• Although significant resource is allocated towards budgetary control improvements, the continued 
development of linkages between budget and service planning processes with a corresponding review of 
procedures and training, will lead to better overall budget management. 

 
 
Ian Nisbet, MBA MSc ACMA 
Internal Audit Manager 
HQ Kilmory 
18 May 2005 
misc/audit/internalcontrolstatementfinaldraft 

Page 62



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003 – 2004. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Accounts Commission - Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of 

August 2004 entitled, “Adapting to the future”. As there were no implementation dates 
assigned to the report recommendations, Internal Audit drew up an action plan covering 
the report recommendations and asked the Community Services Department management 
to prepare a position paper so that, it could be determined where the Council was in terms 
of compliance with the recommendations outlined in the national report.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Internal Audit stated to the Audit Committee on the 3rd of December 2004 that it 

would report back to the Audit Committee regarding the review of the national 
reports recommendations by Community Services management. Community 
Services management on the 22nd of April 2005, confirmed to Internal Audit that a 
study had been carried out which identified that further feasibility studies would 
be required in order to address the national report recommendations. 

    
  3.2 The Action Plan attached in Appendix 1, lists the 21 report recommendations and 

the responses of management with proposed implementation dates. As at the 18th 
of May 2005, 2 recommendations are complete with a further 3 having been 
progressed through a meeting held on the 11th of May 2005. This has resulted in 
one of the 3 due to be complete by the end of May, with the other 2 to be complete 
by October 2005. There are a further 16 recommendations with implementation 
dates stretching from June to November 2005, for which management have 
reported ongoing progress. 

    
  3.3 Community Services management wanted the Audit Committee to know that in 

response to the Scottish Executive seeking transparent validation of genuine 
progress in joint working, the Joint Strategy Group has authorised a staged 
implementation of Joint Single Management. The first phase will be in the Bute 
and Cowal area and a Project Plan is currently being developed and supported by 
Bishops Consulting. The Joint Improvement Team of the Scottish Executive is 
also providing practical support to the Project. The Physical Disability Service re-
design proposals (including Adapting to the Future) will be fully tested as part of 
the Bute and Cowal Project. 

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
  Progress with the implementation of the national reports recommendations, will 

continue to be monitored by Internal Audit.  
 

Agenda Item 9Page 63



5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   18th May 2005          
18Mayfinalreport18May 

Page 64



                                                                                                         APPENDIX 1 
Main Report - Action Plan: Adapting to the future 

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Community Services  
Management Response 

Implementation  
  Date 

 Person-centred services 
Councils and NHS bodies should 

   

1 Jointly publish comprehensive information 
on community equipment and adaptations, 
covering: 

• What help is available  

• Who to contact 

• Eligibility criteria 

• Who needs to pay and how 
much 

• What service people can 
expect, using information such 
as local targets for response 
times. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

A joint meeting was held with 
Occupational Therapy staff on May 
11th to re-write practice guidance 
and produce information leaflets. 
This exercise will be concluded by 
the end of May 2005. 

May 2005 

2 The information in 1 above should be 
published in different formats and in other 
languages as needed by local communities 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Information above will be 
produced in large print and audio 
tape and other languages as 
required. 

June 2005 

3 There should be a review regarding the 
level of demand for out-of-hours services. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Overall service requires to be 
reviewed. Feasibility study 
proposed and being presented at 
next Joint Strategy meeting. Out of 
hours services would be examined 
within the study. 

November 2005 

 How are services organised 

Councils and NHS bodies should 

   

4 Work towards joint information systems 
that provide good management information 
on the community equipment and 
adaptation services within their partnership 
area.  

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Re-implementation of Carefirst 
should provide more robust 
information. IT provision will be 
examined within a feasibility study 
as to best joint systems. 

This will be 
progressed through 
co-operation with 
ICT in their long 
term strategy. 

5 Clarify partnership arrangements for the 
assessment and provision of community 
equipment and adaptations ensuring that all 
relevant partners are involved; and 
formalise these arrangements in agreed 
policies and procedures. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Feasibility study will identify 
required policies and procedures. 

November 2005 

6 Ensure all relevant staff across the 
respective partner organisations are aware 
of the agreed policies and procedures. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Training for staff would be carried 
out when policies and procedures 
are in place. 

November 2005 

Page 65



                                                                                                         APPENDIX 1 
No Recommendation Responsible 

Officer 
Community Services  

Management Response 

Implementation  
  Date 

7 Ensure that community equipment and 
adaptation services are developed as part of 
their overall community care strategy. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Community care strategies will be 
reviewed to ensure community 
equipment and adaptations services 
are included as part of the 
feasibility study. 

September 2005 

8 Develop protocols, which maximise the 
ability of staff from different partnership 
organisations to access equipment and 
adaptations and reduce the waiting time for 
users. 

 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Protocols would be developed 
following the feasibility study. 

November 2005 

 How are services organised 

Councils and NHS bodies should 

   

9 Jointly review budgets for community 
equipment and adaptations and HIG’s to 
ensure that they are set at a realistic level to 
meet need. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Budgets will be regularly reviewed 
through Joint Strategy group. 

June 2005 ongoing. 
Then bi-monthly 

with budget 
monitoring reports 

presented at all 
meetings.  

10 Monitor the performance on equipment and 
adaptation services by collecting and using 
robust management information on: 

• Cost 

• Activity, including waiting times 

• Quality of services, including 
users’ views. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Robust systems for collecting 
information will be identified from 
recommendations of feasibility 
study. 

November 2005 

11 Record and monitor activity and 
expenditure associated with third 
parties, such as Care and Repair, RSLs 
and voluntary organisations, as charges 
in these areas are likely to impact 
significantly on future service delivery 
and resourcing. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

A charge monitoring system will 
be set up to address this 
recommendation. 

November 2005 

12 Develop joint performance indicators so 
that the service can be evaluated across a 
partnership area. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Following feasibility study- joint 
performance indicators will be 
developed. 

November 2005 

13 Councils and schools should ensure that 
there is training on the inclusion of pupils 
with SEN and for class and subject teachers 
and SNAs, in particular, that there is 
effective development and training to 
support the needs of pupils with SEBD. 

Ronald Gould 

Head of 
Secondary 
Education 

Wilma Lawn QIO ASN. An annual 
needs analysis informs the 
provision of our in-service training 
for teachers and SEN assistants 
relating to pupils with SEN or 
SEBD.  The annual strategy is 
included in the education policy 
file Supporting Children: 
Supporting Effective Learning. 

Complete 

14 Once trend information is available, 
benchmark with other partnerships using 
like-for-like performance measures to drive 
forward continuous improvement. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Benchmarking with other similar 
local authorities will take place 
once information available. 

Complete 

Page 66



                                                                                                         APPENDIX 1 
No Recommendation Responsible 

Officer 
Community Services  

Management Response 

Implementation  
  Date 

15 Work together to assess need for major 
adaptations in the future. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

 
 

Develop close working links with 
Housing, RSLs, Care & Repair to 
monitor trends to assist in assessing 
for future adaptations. 

November 2005 

 Managing Risk  

Councils and NHS bodies should 

   

16 Ensure stock control systems are in 
place to track and locate equipment. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Robust systems for managing 
equipment will be identified by 
feasibility study. 

November 2005 

17  Ensure that written instructions on using 
equipment and adaptations are always 
provided for users and carers, and trained 
staff always demonstrate their use. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

A joint meeting was held with 
Occupational Therapy staff to re-
write practise guidance and 
produce information leaflets on 
May 11th. The whole exercise 
should be concluded by October 
2005. 

October 2005 

18 Consider how best to provide advice 
and support to people in private 
housing market who install major 
adaptations.  

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

A joint meeting was held with 
Occupational Therapy staff to re-
write practise guidance and 
produce information leaflets on 
May 11th. The whole exercise 
should be concluded by October 
2005. 

October 2005 

19 Agree and implement formal policies and 
procedures that include: 

• Recall of faulty equipment 

• Maintenance and repair 
arrangements  

• Recycling, including infection 
control procedures 

• Emergency arrangements.  

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Robust systems for managing 
equipment will be identified by 
feasibility study. 

November 2005 

20 Ensure management information 
systems contribute to the effective 
management of risk. 

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Robust systems for managing 
equipment will be identified by 
feasibility study. 

November 2005 

21 Review user needs once equipment and 
adaptations have been supplied.  

Jim Robb 
Head of 
Integrated 
Development. 

Methods of monitoring and 
evaluation of service require to be 
identified following feasibility 
study. 

November 2005 

 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
AUDIT SCOTLAND REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT (FOLLOW-UP) 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
  In July 2004, Audit Scotland issued a national and local report on their review findings. 

The review concentrated on assessing internal audit compliance with the CIPFA 
(Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government. Detailed below is the progress that has been made regarding 
the implementation of the local report recommendations. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted. 

3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 Internal Audit can report that as at the 18th of May 2005, all of the 15 

recommendations contained in the Audit Scotland local report have now been 
addressed.  

    
4.  CONCLUSIONS 
  
 The recommendations outlined in the Audit Scotland local report have been 

addressed. 
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  4.2 Financial: None 
        
  4.3 Personnel: None 
        
  4.4 Legal: None 
        
  4.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager  (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   18 May 2005.  
18Mayprogressreport18May 

Agenda Item 10Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2004 – 2005. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  This report contains the executive summary and action plan for a new report issued by 

Audit Scotland since the last Audit Committee. Internal Audit has performed a review of 
the progress made by management in implementing the reports recommendations.  (See 
Appendix 1). This report will be incorporated into the new reporting system for the next 
Audit Committee.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Audit Scotland in February 2005 issued a report entitled, “Information 

Management Review”. The report covers the arrangements in place to provide a 
reliable planning, operational and monitoring environment regarding Information 
Management, Data Protection and preparedness for the introduction of Freedom of 
Information legislation. . The report contains an action plan detailing 7 
recommendations. As at the 22nd of April 2005, there are 4 recommendations, 
which remain to be implemented.  

    
  3.2 Of the remaining recommendations, 2 have an implementation date of May and 

one August 2005. Management have advised Internal Audit that these 
recommendations remain ongoing. With regard to the remaining recommendation 
with an implementation date of June 2005, management have advised Internal 
Audit that this date will move as new regulations are being issued by the 
Government in July which should be incorporated with the Council’s Data 
Protection Policy. Therefore a more prudent date for implementation would be 
August 2005. The Executive Summary and Action Plan are appended in Appendix 
1 for your review.  

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 

Agenda Item 11Page 71



  
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   22 April 2005 
22Aprfinalreport22apr 

Page 72



Argyll & Bute Council                                            
2004/05 audit 
Draft Information Management Review 

APPENDIX 1

 

FEBRUARY 2005 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

1

 

1. Executive Summary 

Introduction 
This report summarises the findings from our 2004/05 review of aspects of Argyll & Bute 
Council’s controls relating to the arrangements for Information Management that will facilitate 
effective Data Protection and preparedness for the introduction of Freedom of Information 
legislation.  The report covers the arrangements in place to provide a reliable planning, 
operational and monitoring environment in this context.  Where appropriate, the report 
suggests actions to strengthen existing controls or otherwise address identified weaknesses.  
Only those findings that require management action are included in the report.  

The Data Protection Act 1998 is the fundamental legislation that the Government has 
provided as a framework for the secure, fair and lawful processing of personal data.  The Act 
describes the Council’s responsibilities to all data subjects, e.g. the general public, taxpayers 
and employees. 

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 
are part of the Government’s drive to promote a culture of openness and accountability 
amongst public sector bodies by providing people with legal rights of access to the 
information held by them.  Within the Freedom of Information legislation there are timetables 
set for gaining agreement with the respective Information Commissioners for information to 
be published, and for making this information available to the public.  The Acts came into 
force from 1st January 2005.  By this time all public authorities are required to carry out the 
work necessary to meet the deadlines set by the Acts.  The Freedom of Information Acts and 
Data Protection Act 1998 serve as the principal mechanisms for providing access to 
information held by public authorities.   

Summary of Main Findings 
Argyll and Bute Council has demonstrated a clear commitment to achieving the 
Government’s timetable for freedom of information.  A working group was established and is 
progressing actions preparing the Council to be able to comply with freedom of information 
legislation.  A clear statement of the Council’s policy that will facilitate a consistent approach 
to freedom of information has not yet been adopted.  Actions underway include creating 
awareness of the new legislation.   

Our review identified that the Council has a number of policies and procedures in place 
relating to information security, including Data Protection.  However, the existing data 
protection policy requires updating to reflect recent changes and guidelines.  Extensive 
documentation is available on Data Protection and training is provided by the Data Protection 
Officer on departmental request.  Knowledge and awareness of the Council’s Data Protection 
policies and procedures facilitate compliance, however Council officers who should receive 
detailed training or awareness training needs to be identified and training or awareness 
sessions should be presented accordingly.   

The recent legislation is increasingly demanding on public organisations in terms of records 
management.  The Council has various records management practices in place, although 
these could come under pressure to meet the additional demands placed on it.  An 
Information Strategy can provide the Council with a sound basis for effective information 
management and establish a framework within which resources are effectively applied for the 
purposes of the Council’s ongoing modernising government agenda as well as Data 

Page 73



Argyll & Bute Council                                            
2004/05 audit 
Draft Information Management Review 

APPENDIX 1

 

FEBRUARY 2005 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

2

Protection and Freedom of Information legislation.  Such a strategy should provide for the 
consistent management of data, records and information throughout the Council’s Services.   

Conclusions 
Argyll and Bute Council has a number of policies and procedures in place governing 
information security and data protection.  In addition, policies and procedures to enable the 
Council to comply with the requirements of the recent Freedom of Information legislation 
were being prepared.  Opportunities to strengthen the council’s governance and internal 
control structures were noted and recommendations to that effect are included in the action 
plan in section 2.  Positive action has already been taken on many of the matters arising from 
this review by the time of our report. 

The main issues identified from this report are set out for Argyll and Bute Council to 
investigate or resolve and form part of an agreed action plan incorporated in the next section 
of this report.  We would like to thank management and staff for their kind co-operation and 
assistance with this audit.   

 

Page 74



Argyll & Bute Council 
2004/05 audit 
Draft Information Management Review 
 

APPENDIX 1

 

FEBRUARY 2005 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

3

 

2. Action Plan 

 
No Recommendation Responsible

Officer 
Action Date Update as 

at 22 April 
2005 

1 The Council’s Data 
Protection Policy should 
be reviewed and updated 
with the requirements of 
the Data protection Act, 
1998 and subsequent 
guidance issued by the 
Information Commissioner. 
Priority:  High 

Data 
Protection 
and 
Information 
Security 
Officer 

In progress. June 2005 
  

New 
regulations 
are being 
issued by the 
government 
in July and 
these are to 
be integrated 
with our Data 
Protection 
Policy 
therefore a 
new date of 
August 2005 
is more 
prudent.  

2 The Council should clarify 
its policy relating to 
Freedom of Information.   
Priority:  High 

Head of 
Democratic 
Services and 
Governance 

The policy will be 
referenced under the 
Regulation Report (i.e. 
the new Council 
Constitution).    

May 2005 
 

May 2005 
ongoing 

3 Job descriptions and 
remits should be reviewed 
and updated to incorporate 
responsibilities for 
activities to comply with 
the requirements of 
Freedom of Information 
legislation.   
Priority:  Medium 

Personnel Implemented. Implemented Implemented 

4 The representation on the 
Freedom of Information 
Working Group should be 
reconsidered with the view 
of including 
representatives from all 
the Council’s Services. 
Priority:  High 

Data 
Protection 
and 
Information 
Security 
Officer; and 
Governance 
and Risk 
Manager 

Sandra Black 
represents Operational 
Services on the 
Freedom of Information 
Working Group.  In 
addition to having 
representatives from all 
departments David 
Logan and Stephen 
Doogan have been 
visiting departmental 
management to raise 
awareness.   

Implemented Implemented 

Page 75



Argyll & Bute Council 
2004/05 audit 
Draft Information Management Review 
 

APPENDIX 1

 

FEBRUARY 2005 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

4

No Recommendation Responsible
Officer 

Action Date Update as 
at 22 April 

2005 
5 Training and awareness of 

the Council’s Data 
Protection policies and 
procedures should be 
provided continuously.  
Officers who should 
receive detailed training 
should be identified and 
general awareness 
sessions should be 
provided to staff where 
appropriate.   
Priority: High 

Data 
Protection 
and 
Information 
Security 
Officer 

Training will be 
included in the 
Performance and 
Development Review 
(PDR) process of 
relevant staff members.  
 
A poster campaign is 
planned for January 
2005 to promote 
awareness. 
 
Further training for a 
wider group of staff is 
planned for early 
Spring 2005. 

February 
2005 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 2005 
 

Complete 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Complete 
 
 

6 Formalised procedures for 
the regular updating of the 
Council’s publication 
scheme and data 
protection registration 
should be established.   
Priority:  Medium 

Head of 
Democratic 
Services and 
Governance 

The regulation report 
will touch on a clear 
statement on review 
processes for freedom 
of information and data 
protection.   

May 2005 
 

May 2005 
ongoing 

7 The Council should 
consider extending their 
existing records 
management and 
information security 
practices into an all 
inclusive information 
management strategy that 
provides for the consistent 
management of data, 
records and information 
throughout all the 
Council’s Services.   
Priority:  Medium 

Policy & 
Strategy 
Manager 

Work is progressing on 
information 
management.  The 
Corporate Policy 
Manager plans to 
develop work already 
done by the Head of 
Application Support 
and a report will be 
presented to the 
Strategic Management 
Team. 

August 2005 August 2005 
Ongoing 

 

Page 76



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 JUNE 2005
    
  
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2005 - 2006 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
   
  The Audit Committee was provided with the Strategic Audit Plan for 2005 – 2008, which 

was approved on the 4th March 2005. The report attached in Appendix 1, is an extract 
from the 3 year plan and outlines in detail the areas that will be audited in 2005 – 2006. 
This complies with the Audit Scotland request to provide additional information to 
auditees.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2005 - 2006 is approved.  
      
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 Attached is our proposed Annual Internal Audit Plan, which has been presented 

the Strategic Management Team (SMT). It provides detail as to the proposed time 
and areas we intend to audit in 2005 – 2006. The areas were agreed as part of the 
overall 3-year audit plan for the years 2005 – 2008.  

    
  3.2 This document increases the awareness amongst departments regarding audit 

objectives and it is hoped will aid planning and preparation. 
    
  3.3 Within the attached document is a chart showing when in 2005 – 2006 audits are 

planned to take place. The timing of the audits was discussed with line managers 
and then with Heads of Service. However, the audits could be subject to change 
and timing should only be viewed as an indication. With regard to the section 
headed Scope and Objectives, this outlines what each audit will cover.   

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  The Audit Plan addresses the key areas highlighted in the Audit Needs Assessment 

and will provide an annual assurance statement on the Council’s overall internal 
audit framework.  
 

  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 

Agenda Item 12Page 77



 
  
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager  (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   22 April 2005.  
22Aprreport22April  

Page 78



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Argyll and Bute Council 

Annual Audit Plan 2005 - 2006  
April 2005 

 

Page 79



  

 

INDEX 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Annual Audit Plan 2005- 2006 Chart. 
 

• Scope & Objectives for areas outlined in the Audit Annual Plan 2005 – 
2006. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



  
 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 P
LA

N
 2

00
5 

– 
20

06
 

C
or

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ys
te

m
s 

R
is

k 
R

an
ki

ng
La

st
 

A
ud

ite
d

A
ud

it 
D

ay
s 

20
05

-0
6 

A
pr

il 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
 

A
ug

us
t 

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
rD

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
M

ar
ch

 

B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l  
1 

20
05

 
20

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
C

ap
ita

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

1 
20

05
 

20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ap

ita
l C

on
tra

ct
s 

1 
20

05
 

20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

C
as

h 
In

co
m

e 
an

d 
B

an
ki

ng
 

2 
20

04
 

30
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
tra

ct
 H

ire
 a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Le
as

es
 

2 
20

03
 

20
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
an

d 
N

on
-D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 
2 

20
03

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
C

re
di

to
r P

ay
m

en
ts

 
2 

20
04

 
25

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
eb

to
r A

cc
ou

nt
s 

2 
20

04
 

20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

- e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

2 
20

04
 

25
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
U

ni
fie

d 
B

en
ef

its
 S

ys
te

m
 

2 
20

04
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
ts

 
2 

20
05

 
20

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
ge

r O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

2 
20

05
 

25
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t &

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
G

ra
nt

s 
1 

20
03

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
P

ay
ro

ll 
2 

20
04

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
2 

20
05

 
20

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

Te
nd

er
in

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
1 

20
04

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 B
od

ie
s 

(P
ub

lic
 P

ou
nd

) 
2 

20
05

 
20

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

S
to

ck
ta

ki
ng

 
2 

20
05

 
25

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
Su

bt
ot

al
 C

or
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s 
 

44
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
on

-F
in

an
ci

al
 A

ud
its

 
R

is
k 

R
an

ki
ng

La
st

 
A

ud
ite

d
A

ud
it 

D
ay

s 
20

05
-0

6 
A

pr
il 

M
ay

 
Ju

ne
 

Ju
ly

 
A

ug
us

t 
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

rD
ec

em
be

r
Ja

nu
ar

y
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

M
ar

ch
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 U
ni

t –
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 
1 

20
04

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

– 
IC

T 
– 

S
ec

ur
ity

 
2 

- 
25

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

– 
C

ar
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

2 
- 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
-N

P
D

O
 C

on
tra

ct
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

1 
20

03
 

30
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

T 
& 

I G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng
 

1 
- 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ll 

D
ep

ts
 –

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 W
or

ki
ng

 
1 

20
04

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
A

ll 
D

ep
ts

 –
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

As
se

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

1 
20

04
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

A
ll 

D
ep

ts
 –

 P
ro

pe
rty

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
1 

- 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
A

ll 
D

ep
ts

 –
 R

ec
ru

itm
en

t &
 R

et
en

tio
n 

of
 S

ta
ff 

2 
- 

25
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

ll 
D

ep
ts

 –
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
nn

in
g 

1 
- 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
A

ll 
D

ep
ts

 –
 N

ew
 L

eg
is

la
tio

n 
1 

- 
30

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

1 
20

04
 

30
 

►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
1 

20
04

 
60

 
 

 
►
 
 
◄

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
b 

To
ta

l N
on

-F
in

an
ci

al
 

 
 

41
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

D
ay

s 
R

is
k 

R
an

ki
ng

La
st

 
A

ud
ite

d
A

ud
it 

D
ay

s 
20

05
-0

6 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
pe

ci
al

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
n/

a 
n/

a 
80

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

E
xt

er
na

l &
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Le
tte

r P
oi

nt
s 

n/
a 

n/
a 

60
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t, 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n,
 A

nn
ua

l P
la

ns
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

20
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
b 

To
ta

l S
I/R

is
k/

Fo
llo

w
-u

p 
 

 
16

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l 

 
10

10
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 81



 

  

1 Scope and Objectives 2005 – 2006   

1.1 2005 - 2006 Planned Objectives  
1.1.1 The following sections outline the broad scope and objectives for the reviews 

identified for 2005-2006. 

 

1.2 Budgetary Control 

1.2.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ The responsibilities of Officers and Members for the setting and control of 
budgets are properly defined; 

■ Budgets are set in accordance with pre-determined approved policy objectives; 

■ Revenue expenditure and income is properly controlled by the effective periodic 
monitoring of financial out-turns against detailed budgets; 

■ Virements are managed and controlled effectively; 

■ Significant variances are promptly identified, reported and acted upon; and 

■ The system contributes to the Council’s ability to demonstrate that resources are 
being used in an economical, effective and efficient way. 

 

1.3 Capital Accounting 

1.3.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Fixed assets are identified and classified in accordance with the Accounting Code 
of Practice (ACOP) and compliant with the Prudential Code; 

■ Fixed assets are correctly recorded in an asset register; 

■ Fixed assets are valued in accordance with CIPFA guidance and the Prudential 
Code; 

■ Appropriate Prudential Code indicators have been calculated and approved and 
regularly reviewed; 

■ Capital charges are made to service accounts in accordance with ACOP and the 
Prudential Code; 

■ Fixed assets and capital charges are correctly recorded in the financial ledger; 
and compliant with the Prudential Code; and 

■ The system contributes to the economic, effective and efficient management of 
the Council’s assets. 

 

Page 82



 

  

1.4 Capital Contracts 

1.4.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ For major capital projects over £1m a proper business case and project appraisal 
procedure enables effective selection of appropriate projects; 

■ The design satisfies the original project criteria; 

■ The tendering process awards the contract to the most suitable contractor at the 
most advantageous price and is compliant with the Prudential Code with regard 
to affordability and financing; 

■ Work is properly project managed, supervised and executed to contract 
specifications; 

■ The system ensures the preparation of accurate interim valuations, final accounts 
and meets the Prudential Code sustainability criteria; and 

■ All relevant information on the project is collected, evaluated and used to improve 
future performance. 

 

1.5 Cash and Income Banking 

1.5.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Officers receiving cash are able to misappropriate funds without detection; 

■ Cash is promptly and fully banked; 

■ Payments received are promptly processed and correctly recorded in the financial 
ledger; 

■ Security for non-banked cash is adequate; and 

■ Income arrears procedures are properly controlled. 
 

1.6 Contract Hire and Operating Leases 

1.6.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Proper control procedures are being operated; 

■ E-Procurement is delivering the expected benefits; 

■ It is compliant with the Prudential Code; 

■ Arrangements are in place to assess that contracts and operating leases are 
compliant with contractual undertakings; and 

■ Department budgets are set with consideration of commitments.  

Page 83



 

  

1.7 Council Tax & Non Domestic Rates 

1.7.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

 Council Tax 

■ All relevant data from the valuation list is promptly and correctly transferred to the 
billing system; 

■ Bills are correctly calculated (including discounts, reliefs etc) for all relevant 
properties; 

■ Only valid amendments can be made to the billing system; 

■ Payments received are promptly processed and correctly posted to taxpayers’ 
accounts; 

■ Write offs, cancellations and refunds are properly controlled;  

■ Arrears follow up procedures are properly controlled; 

■ Relevant properties are identified and included in the valuation list; 

■ Properties included on the valuation list are allocated to the correct valuation 
band; 

■ Only valid amendments can be made to the valuation list; and 

 

 Non-Domestic Rates 

■ All relevant data from the valuation roll is promptly and correctly transferred to the 
assessment roll; 

■ Properties included on the valuation roll are given the correct rateable value; 

■ Only valid amendments can be made to the valuation roll; and 

 

1.8 Creditor Payments 

1.8.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Payments are made only for goods and services which were the subject of 
authorised orders; 

■ Procedures for adding to, and removing contractors from, the standing list, and 
for selecting tenderers, are properly controlled; 

■ All invoices are properly authorised and paid at the appropriate time; 

■ Payments are made only to valid creditors; and 

■ Payments are correctly recorded in the financial ledger.  

 

Page 84



 

  

1.9 Debtor Accounts 

1.9.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Accounts are properly raised and posted for all chargeable services; 

■ Accounts are issued promptly; 

■ Payments received are promptly processed and correctly posted to debtors’ 
accounts; 

■ Write-offs, cancellations and credit notes are properly controlled; and 

■ Arrears follow-up procedures are properly controlled.  
 

1.10 Purchasing 

1.10.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Only goods and services which are required for the audited body’s business are 
ordered; 

■ Orders are placed only after costs have been ascertained; 

■ Orders are placed only with authorised suppliers; 

■ Invoices are passed for payment to the correct supplier and only for 
goods/services received;  

■ Invoices are correctly coded for posting to the financial ledger; and 

■ The roll out of e-Procurement throughout the Council is properly controlled. 
 

1.11 Unified Benefits System 

1.11.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

 Council Tax 

■ Benefit can be awarded only to valid applicants; 

■ Claims are accurately assessed and benefit calculated in accordance with 
Regulations; 

■ Claims are processed and determinations made within the timescales required by 
Regulations; 

■ Benefit awards are correctly recorded in the benefits system, the council tax 
debtors system and the financial ledger; 

■ Adequate steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud; 

■ Overpayments are recovered, where appropriate; and 

■ The annual subsidy claim is accurate and complete. 

  

Page 85



 

  

Housing Benefits 

■ Benefit (rent rebate and rent allowances) can be awarded only to valid applicants; 

■ Claims are accurately assessed and benefit calculated in accordance with 
Regulations; 

■ Claims are processed and determinations made within the timescales required by 
Regulations; 

■ Benefit awards are correctly recorded in the benefits system, the rent accounting 
system and the financial ledger; 

■ Adequate steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud; 

■ Overpayments are recovered, where appropriate; and 

■ The annual subsidy claim is accurate and complete. 
 

1.12 Housing Rents 

1.12.1 In 2005 – 2006 a Housing Stock Transfer is scheduled to take place and therefore 
within the annual plan 20 days have been allocated to cover the following issues: 

■ Ensure that the Council has approved a business plan for delivery of the Scottish 
Housing Quality Standard and has procedures in place to adhere to the plan; 

■ Ensure that a process has been put in place to ensure that all relevant properties 
have been identified and their transfer agreed; and 

■ Any associated debts and prepayments are recognised and dealt with in 
accordance with Scottish Executive and Communities Scotland guidelines in co-
operation with the new Housing Association. 

 

1.13 General Ledger Operations 

1.13.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Prior year balances are correctly brought forward; 

■ All data input to the system is properly authorised; 

■ Data from feeder systems is correctly and timeously transferred to the financial 
ledger; 

■ Output properly reflects the financial data within the system; 

■ Output is produced in accordance with a prescribed timetable and in a format 
which contributes to the financial management of the body; and 

■ The system contributes to the economic, effective and efficient management of 
the Council’s assets. 

 

Page 86



 

  

1.14 Government & European Grants 

1.14.1 Various grants are received by the Council from the Scottish Executive and cover 
Housing, Social Work, Education and Benefit Subsidies. 

1.14.2 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ All Government Grants are identified and applications made in accordance with 
grant requirements; 

■ Grants are only applied to the purposes provided; 

■ Amounts receivable / received are complete; 

■ The use of Government Grants is planned and controlled; and 

■ Adequate monitoring and reporting mechanisms are in place for management 
information. 

 

1.15 Payroll  
1.15.1 The focus for the payroll review for year one of the strategic plans will be to assess 

the continued roll out of HR Payroll and to ensure that progress is being made 
against target across all departments. In years 2 & 3 we will look at specific issues 
regarding operation of the Payroll. The specific objectives of these reviews will be to 
assess whether: 

■ Payments are made only to valid employees; 

■ Payroll budgets are set in accordance with pre-determined approved policy 
objectives; 

■ Data (particularly standing data) is accurate and complete; 

■ Payments are correctly calculated in accordance with contracts of employment, 
pay scales, hours worked, other authorised allowances etc; and 

■ The system contributes to the Council’s ability to demonstrate that resources are 
being used in an economical, effective and efficient way. 

 

1.16 Treasury Management 

1.16.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Borrowing and lending transactions are in accordance with statutory powers, 
approved policy and strategy; 

■ Appropriate Prudential Code indicators have been calculated and approved and 
regularly reviewed; 

■ The following meet the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Treasury 
Management in Local Authorities; 

1. Annual borrowing requirements and daily balances are properly estimated; 
2. Borrowing and lending transactions are properly controlled; 
3. Loan repayments and interest are paid on the due dates and in respect of 

valid loans; 
4. Deposits and interest are recalled/repaid on the due dates; and 
5. Borrowing and lending transactions are correctly recorded in bank accounts, 

the financial ledger, and other subsidiary records (e.g. registers).  

Page 87



 

  

1.17 Tendering 

1.17.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ The new Council Standing Orders reflect the required changes for effective 
control; 

■ Procedures for adding to and removing contractors from the Council’s standing 
lists are properly controlled and make effective use of Constructionline services; 

■ Procedures for selecting tenderers are in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations; 

■ Valid submitted tenders are recorded and held securely prior to formal opening; 

■ Tender opening procedures are properly controlled; 

■ Tenders comply with European Journal regulations where necessary; 

■ Only authorised alterations are made to tenders after opening process; and 

■ Procedures for evaluating tenders and selecting successful tenders are properly 
controlled. 

 

1.18 Payments to Voluntary Bodies 

1.18.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Grants are classified according to materiality and any monitoring arrangements 
determined and carried out according to the Council’s assessment of risk; 

■ All grant payments are identified in a register of funding; 

■ There is a record of the names of members or officers who sit on the boards and 
committees of external bodies; 

■ Applications are made in accordance with grant requirements; 

■ Funding to external organisations is specific and clearly stated; 

■ Amounts receivable/received are complete, planned and controlled; and 

■ A monitoring procedure is in place to ensure that available performance 
measures are collected and reported. 

 

1.19 Stock Taking 

1.19.1 The specific objectives of this review will assess whether: 

■ Systems are in place for maintaining accurate stock records;  

■ Stock is held in a secure environment;  

■ Adequate procedures are in place for management to count stock at year-end; 
and 

■ External Audit requirements have changed in respect of stock testing. 

 

Page 88



 

  

Assessment of Audit Days: 2005-2008 
 Risk  

ranking 
Last 

audited 2005-06 

Core financial 
systems 

  

Budgetary preparation and 
control 1 2003 20 

Capital accounting 1 2005 20 

Capital contracts 1 2005 20 

Cash income and banking 2 2004 30 

    

Contract hire and operating 
leases 2 2003 20 

Council tax and non-domestic 
rates 2 2003 30 

Creditor payments 2 2004 25 

Debtor accounts 2 2004 20 

Purchasing  2 2004 25 

Unified benefits system 2 2004 30 

Housing rents 2 2005 20 

General ledger operations 2 2005 25 

Government & European 
Grants 1 2003 30 

Payroll 2 2004 30 

Treasury management 2 2004 20 

Tendering procedures  1 2004 30 

Payments to voluntary bodies 
(following the public pound) 2 2004 20 

Stock taking 2 2004 25 

Subtotal core financial 
systems   440 

 

Page 89



 

  

1.20 Non-Financial Audits 

1.20.1 The non-financial section of the strategic audit plan recognises activities that require 
to be reviewed on an annual basis. These include corporate governance and 
statutory performance indicators. The significance of Information Technology (IT) for 
controlling Council activities and the provision of management information, means 
that Internal Audit is required to review general IT controls and the Council's IT 
security strategy. This area of audit will be co-ordinated with our internal audit 
partner. 

  
1.20.2 Internal Audit in complying with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit, has 

prepared this section of the report incorporating high risk areas identified by Heads of 
Service in a recent operational risk exercise carried out between the Corporate 
Services Department - Governance & Risk section, Internal Audit and its partner. 

 
1.21 Best Value Audit  

1.21.1 Audit Scotland is to undertake a Best Value review of the Council’s activities 
commencing in the summer of 2005.  They will prepare a report of their findings and 
after discussion with the Council agree an action plan for the Council to implement.  
This action plan is expected to be agreed in the autumn of 2005. 

■ Internal Audit will monitor the implementation of its 2004 - 2005 Best Value report 
action plans agreed by management in December 2004 and thereby monitor 
progress in preparation for the Audit Scotland Best Value Audit visit. 

■ Internal Audit will also allocate resources to discuss and monitor the 
implementation plan by management of the agreed Best Value action plan 
probably towards the end of 2005. This will most probably include challenging 
service reviews which were reported on by Internal Audit in 2004 – 2005. 

 
1.22 Corporate Services – ICT Security  

1.22.1 This non financial audit area was identified within the strategic audit plan and was 
derived from a Heads of Service risk evaluation exercise carried out at the end of 
January 2005. The exercise highlighted a number of key operational risks that could 
potentially lead to a problem for the Council, in particular unauthorised access to IT 
systems resulting in a breach of confidentiality, disruption and lack of system 
integrity. Discussions will take place with the Head of ICT & Financial Services and 
responsible manager to determine how best to approach the audit. 

 

1.23 Community Services – Care Services 

1.23.1 The Accounts Commission - Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end 
of August 2004 entitled, “Adapting to the future”. This is a national report and 
contains the findings of a recent study of Local Authorities and NHS bodies in 
Scotland. 

1.23.2 The national report is for guidance to Council management across Scotland and 
listed 21 recommendations. As there were no implementation dates assigned to the 
recommendations contained in the report, Community Services Department 
management have prepared a position paper so that, it can be determined where this 

Page 90



 

  

Council is in terms of compliance with the recommendations outlined in the national 
report.  

1.23.3 Internal Audit in 2005 - 2006 will follow up the audit report findings of 2003/2004 to 
establish what progress has been made by a joint future working group to examine 
issues raised in the report. 

 

1.24 Community Services – Education NPDO 

1.23.1 Internal Audit resources will be allocated to contract monitoring of the Council 
Education NPDO. Consideration will be given to the policy and objectives set, the 
processes and procedures in place for contract management. 

 

1.25 Development Services – Transport & Infrastructure Grant 
Funding 

1.25.1 As a result of a Heads of Service risk evaluation exercise carried out at the end of 
January 2005 the above area was identified as a high risk area. In particular it related 
to the following risk; the potential consequences if there were a failure to obtain 
transportation improvements through grant funding to Regional Transportation 
Partnership 2006 – 2009. It identified that there were few controls, if any in this area 
of activity. Discussions will take place with the Head of Service to determine how best 
to approach the audit of this area.  

 
1.26 All Services – Common Areas 
1.26.1 Set out below are a number of non financial audits identified from a recent Heads of 

Service risk evaluation exercise carried out at the end of January 2005. The exercise 
highlighted a number of key operational risks that needed to be included within the 
plan. In particular it was noted that Heads of Service identified a number of risks 
common to them all.  Internal Audit intends to address each of these risk areas 
across all departments. Resources have been allocated within the annual audit plan 
and discussions will take place with the Heads of Service as to the best way to 
address their particular issues. The risk areas are:  

■ Partnership Working; 

■ Strategic Asset Management; 

■ Property Asset Management; 

■ Recruitment & Retention of  Staff;  

■ Business Continuity Planning and 

■ New Legislation. 

 

Page 91



 

  

1.27 Corporate Governance Compliance / Risk Management 

1.27.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of 
Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) together published ‘Corporate 
Governance in Local Government – A Keystone for Community Governance’.  This is 
a guidance note to assist Councils in achieving good practice corporate governance. 
As per last year an IFCS statement will be produced by internal audit identifying 
areas of significance along with Directors IFCS recognising that action has to be 
taken to resolve these issues. 

1.27.2 The broad objective of this review will be to assess the arrangements put in place by 
the Council to implement the good practice guidance. 

 

1.28 Council wide - Performance Indicators, Council PI’s 

1.28.1 The Council is required to collect record and publish performance indicators to allow 
benchmarking with other local authorities and against the Council’s own past 
performance.  It needs to ensure its systems and processes are robust and operating 
efficiently and effectively to capture and report such information. 

1.28.2 The broad objectives of this review will be to review the processes for reporting key 
performance indicators.  Internal audit will select PI’s for review in three ways, the 
first on variance from previous year’s figures of more than 2 %, secondly where PI’s 
are in a Transitional, Change or New status and thirdly those PI’s that failed last year 
will be reviewed again to assess compliance. The remainder will be the subject of a 
desktop review. Departments and PI co-ordinators have been advised of the 
requirement to maintain notes on variances so that back up is available for the 
auditor to check. 

Page 92



 

  

Assessment of Audit Days: 2005-2008 

 
Risk  

ranking 
Last 

audited 2005-06 

Non-financial audits    

Chief Executives    

Policy & Strategy – Best Value 1 2004 30 

    

Corporate Services    

    

ICT – Security 2 - 25 

    

Community Services    

Care Services 2 - 30 

NPDO – Contract Monitoring  1 2003 30 

    

    

Development Services    

Transport & Infrastructure Grant 
Funding 

1 - 30 

    

    

    

    

    

All Departments    

Partnership Working 1 2004 30 

Strategic Asset Management 1 2004 30 

Property Asset Management 1 - 30 

Recruitment & Retention of Staff 2 - 25 

Business Continuity Planning 1 - 30 
New Legislation 1 - 30 

Corporate Governance 1 2004 30 

Performance Indicators 1 2004 60 

Subtotal non-financial   410 

 

 

Page 93



 

  

1.29 Contingency Days 2005 – 2008 

1.29.1 Audit days have been included within the strategic audit plan for contingency. This is 
audit time for unforeseen events which, by their nature, cannot be planned for, e.g.: 

■ notification of frauds, significant weaknesses or loss; 

■ consideration of controls for new or amended systems; and 

■ reviews of significant breakdown of internal control that cannot be accommodated 
within planned audits. 

 

1.30 Special Investigation 

1.30.1 The management of the Council may from time to time request that Internal Audit 
carry out special investigations on particular issues identified by Council 
management.  

 

1.31 Risk Assessment / Strategic Plan / Annual Plans 

1.31.1 Internal Audit will devote time to assessment of risk matters that could affect the audit 
plan.  To develop the audit plan as issues identified by Council Management require 
input from Internal Audit. In addition Internal Audit will:  

■ Closely  work with Corporate Services – Risk Management Group ; and 

■ Ensuring that the strategic audit plan and annual plans reflect all necessary 
changes. 

 

1.32 Follow-up of Internal & External Audit Recommendations 

1.32.1 The specific objectives of this review will be to assess and report to the Audit 
Committee on: 

■ Progress made by management to address the recommendations made by both 
internal and external audit and agreed by management. 

Page 94



 

  

Assessment of Audit Days: 2005-2008 

 2005-06 

Contingency days  

Special investigations contingency 80 

Follow-up external & internal audit management letter points 60 

Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans 20 

Sub Total  160 

Page 95



  1.
33

 I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

D
ay

s 
20

05
 - 

20
06

 

 
 

A
ud

it 
 

M
an

ag
er

 
A

ud
it 

 
M

an
ag

er
 

A
cc

ou
nt

an
t 

A
cc

ou
nt

an
t 

Se
ni

or
  

A
ud

it 
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

A
ud

it 
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

Pa
rt

ne
r 

C
on

tr
ac

t 
A

ud
ito

r 
To

ta
l 

N
um

be
r o

f D
ay

s 
in

 fu
ll 

ye
ar

 
26

0 
26

0 
17

6 
20

8 
26

0 
19

7 
53

 
90

 
1,

50
4 

Le
ss

: 
P

ub
lic

 H
ol

id
ay

s 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
- 

 
72

 

 
A

nn
ua

l L
ea

ve
 

25
 

28
 

20
 

20
 

28
 

20
 

- 
 

14
1 

 
S

ic
kn

es
s 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 

5 
5 

5 
5 

5 
5 

- 
 

30
 

W
or

ki
ng

 D
ay

s 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

21
8 

21
5 

13
9 

17
1 

21
5 

16
0 

53
 

90
 

1,
26

1 

N
on

-D
ire

ct
 A

ud
it 

W
or

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
IA

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

30
 

15
 

5 
5 

- 
- 

28
 

- 
83

 

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
25

 
15

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
40

 

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
, D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

&
 S

em
in

ar
s 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

- 
- 

60
 

 
A

ud
it 

In
te

rn
al

 M
ee

tin
gs

 
10

 
10

 
6 

6 
6 

6 
- 

- 
44

 

 
A

dv
is

or
y 

10
 

10
 

2 
2 

- 
- 

- 
- 

24
 

To
ta

l f
or

 N
on

-D
ire

ct
 A

ud
it 

Su
pp

or
t 

W
or

k 
85

 
60

 
23

 
23

 
16

 
16

 
28

 
- 

25
1 

Ti
m

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r  

D
ire

ct
 A

ud
it 

W
or

k 
13

3 
15

5 
11

6 
14

8 
19

9 
14

4 
25

 
90

 
1,

01
0 

 

Page 96


